Schaghticoke Middle School



Strive Unite Respect Grow Encourage

2021-2022

Student/Parent Handbook



SCHAGHTICOKE MIDDLE SCHOOL

23 Hipp Road, New Milford CT 06776 Telephone (860) 354-2204 Fax (860) 210-2216 <u>http://sms.newmilfordps.org/</u> <u>http://twitter.com/SMS_CT</u>

	Dr. Christopher Longo, Principal
	Mrs. Barbara Nanassy, Assistant Principal
	Mrs. Sasha Salem, Assistant Principal
	Mrs. Catherine Calabrese, Assistant Principal
	Mrs. Tracy-Ann Menzies, Supervisor of Special Education
S trive	August 2021
	Dear Parents/Guardians and Students:
Unite	Welcome to the 2021-2022 school year at Schaghticoke Middle School! We are eager to welcome back our seventh and eighth grade students and excited to greet our incoming sixth graders. I would also like to extend a warm welcome to all of the teachers and staff
	that will be joining the Schaghticoke community. This will be a year filled with excitement, opportunity, and change as we work together to create a positive school climate where students can benefit from meaningful learning experiences.
Respect	
-	The middle school years are filled with many moments that shape students in the transition between elementary school and high school. It is our goal to ensure the best education is provided for our students. This includes the development of not only 21 st century skills,
Grow	but also the core values of SURGE (Strive, Unite, Respect, Grow, & Encourage). As a school, we need to "live" these traits both in and out of the classroom and in the community.
	We hope to nurture an environment of inquiry, critical thinking, and creativity, where

Encourage We hope to nurture an environment of inquiry, critical thinking, and creativity, where students are both challenged and supported. At SMS, we strive to develop positive relationships between all students, staff, and parents in order to do what is in the best interests of our students and their learning.

On behalf of the faculty, staff, and administration, I extend our best wishes to students for a successful year. I look forward to our journey together at Schaghticoke Middle School.

Sincerely,

Comm. Jas

Christopher Longo, Ed.D. Principal



NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the New Milford Public Schools, a collaborative partnership of students, educators, family and community, is to prepare each and every student to compete and excel in an ever-changing world, embrace challenges with vigor, respect and appreciate the worth of every human being, and contribute to society by providing effective instruction and dynamic curriculum, offering a wide range of valuable experiences, and inspiring students to pursue their dreams and aspirations.

SCHAGHTICOKE MIDDLE SCHOOL VISION STATEMENT

Schaghticoke Middle School is made up of a community of learners: students, parents, faculty, staff, administration and citizens of the greater New Milford area. The foundation of our vision lies upon the positive reinforcement of character: integrity, responsibility, respect, and fairness. Together we will work to create an environment in which all students can reach their potential academically, socially, and emotionally under the guidance and nurturing support of the Schaghticoke community members. We will collaborate to foster an atmosphere of trust and support in order to encourage teachers and students to explore new initiatives in curriculum and assessment to improve student achievement.



Join the SURGE!



School

@DrChrisLongo Principal

ADMINISTRATION	4
SMS PTO	4
ATTENDANCE	5
EXCUSED OR UNEXCUSED ABSENCES & TRUANCY	5
REPORTING OF ABSENCES	6
DOCUMENTATION OF ABSENCE	
EXTENDED ILLNESS	
CONDUCT AND SCHOOL DISCIPLINE	8
STUDENT DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES	8
RE-TEACHING	
SUSPENSION	
BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICIES	10
AIDS INSTRUCTION EXEMPTION	10
BULLYING, HAZING, TEASING, TAUNTING, AND INITIATIONS	11
CHILDREN'S INTERNET PROTECTION ACT (CIPA)	
INTERNET SAFETY	
RESPONSIBLE USE OF TECHNOLOGY, SOCIAL MEDIA, & NETWORK	
DRUGS, ALCOHOL, AND INHALANT MATERIALS.	
ELECTRONIC DEVICES STUDENTS	
B.Y.O.D	16
GAMBLING	
HEALTH TOPICS OPT-OUT	
METAL DETECTORS	18
SEARCH OF PROPERTY AND STUDENTS	19
HARRASSMENT	19
SMOKING	
STATE TESTING	
STUDENT NUTRITION AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY (STUDENT WELLNESS)	
USE OF DOGS TO SEARCH SCHOOL PROPERTY	
WEAPONS	
GENERAL INFORMATION	23
AED PLACEMENT & USE	
AEROSOLS, PERFUMES, AND FRAGRANCES	23
BELL SCHEDULES	24
DELAYED OPENING OR SCHOOL CLOSING	
DISMISSALS	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

BOOK BAGS, BACKPACKS, SIDE PACKS	
CAFETERIA	
CARE OF PROPERTY	
CLASSROOM VISITATIONS	
EMERGENCY PROCEDURES	
FIRE DRILL & EVACUATION PROCEDURES	
LOCKDOWN PROCEDURES	
DRESS AND GROOMING	
ENTERING AND LEAVING THE BUILDING	
FUNDRAISING.	
LOCKS AND LOCKERS	
LOST AND FOUND	
PARENT MESSAGES TO STUDENTS.	
PASSES	
PHYSICAL EDUCATION	
RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS	
SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM	
STUDENT USE OF PHONE	
TEAMING	
TEXTBOOK CARE & USE	
VIDEO CAMERA USE	
VOLUNTEERS	
GRADING PROCEDURES	
PRESIDENT'S AWARD FOR EDUCATION EXCELLENCE	
ACADEMIC ASSISTANCE.	
CHEATING	
HONOR ROLL	
DEPARTMENT TESTING PROCEDURES	
MID-YEAR AND FINAL EXAMINATIONS	
PARENT PORTAL	
PARENT-TEACHER CONFERENCES	
REPORT CARD SCHEDULES	
PROGRAM OF STUDIES	
GRADE 6 REQUIREMENTS	
GRADE 7 REQUIREMENTS	
GRADE 8 REQUIREMENTS	
MUSICAL OPPORTUNITIES	
ADVANCED MATHEMATICS	
RECOMMENDATIONS TO GRADES 6-9	40
SERVICES AND FACILITIES	/1
	••••••••••••••••••
ALLERGIES	

HEALTH SERVICES	41
IMMUNIZATIONS	41
MEDICATIONS	41
COVID-19	42
INSURANCE	
LIBRARY MEDIA CENTER	42
SCHOOL COUNSELING SERVICES	42
STUDENT ACTIVITIES	42
CLUBS AND SPORTS	43
EVENING EVENTS	43
FIELD TRIPS	43
EIGHTH GRADE END OF YEAR EVENTS & DINNER DANCE	43
SUPPORT SERVICES	44
ACADEMIC HELP AFTER SCHOOL	44
CHILD'S HEALTH AND SAFETY	44
HOMEWORK – GENERAL GUIDELINES	44
STUDY HALLS	44
WIN/ ADVISORY/ 3TR (<u>T</u> AKE <u>T</u> IME <u>T</u> O <u>R</u> EAD) PERIOD	
TRANSPORTATION CODE OF DISCIPLINE	45
TRANSPORTATION: BUS CONDUCT	45
TRANSPORTATION ISSUES	46
YOUTH AGENCY AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM AT SMS	46

ADMINISTRATION

Dr. Christopher Longo, Principal Mrs. Barbara Nanassy, Assistant Principal Mrs. Sasha Salem, Assistant Principal Mrs. Catherine Calabrese, Assistant Principal Mrs. Tracy-Ann Menzies, Supervisor of Special Education

SMS PTO

The Schaghticoke Middle School PTO welcomes you to another school year and we are excited to begin what is sure to be a great year!

Important PTO dates are listed on the school calendar. Please join us at our monthly meetings. We encourage you to come to a meeting, get to know SMS PTO, and share your ideas! We know that your time is valuable so we greatly appreciate any time you can give volunteering at an SMS PTO event.

SMS PTO will run several fundraisers and events throughout the school year. We encourage participation to help fund the programs and activities that SMS PTO sponsors such as Battle of the Books, author visits, and field trips. We cannot fund these great programs without your support. Please let us know if you have any ideas!

Please complete a PTO membership form. The membership money raised helps support all of the activities of the New Milford PTO; primarily scholarships for graduating seniors, but also operating expenses and our new NMPTO website! When you become a member, you will be placed on our email list to find out all the latest regarding SMS PTO activities, volunteering, and other information. We will use this email list to contact you regarding SMS PTO activities, volunteering and information.

The PTO President can be contacted via email: <u>Schaghticoke.pto@gmail.com</u>. Please contact us to answer your questions, share your ideas, etc.

Remember to "like" us on Facebook for updates and information.

Sincerely,

The SMS PTO

ATTENDANCE

Connecticut State Law requires parents to cause their children, ages five through eighteen inclusive, to attend school regularly during the hours and terms the public school is in session. Parents or persons having control of a child five years of age have the option of not sending the child to school until age six or seven. The parent or person having control of a child of age five or six shall exercise such option by personally appearing at the school district office and signing an option form. Mandatory attendance terminates upon graduation or withdrawal with written parent/guardian consent at age seventeen. Classroom learning experiences are the basis for public school education. Time lost from class is lost instructional opportunity. The Board of Education requires that accurate records be kept of the attendance of each child, and students should not be absent from school without parental knowledge and consent.

Definitions of Excused and Unexcused Absences Connecticut State Board of Education Adopted June 27, 2012

The following definitions are for the use by Connecticut school districts and schools for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of section 10-198a of the Connecticut General Statutes (Policies and procedures concerning truants), and for the purpose of reporting truancy, pursuant to subsection (c) of Section 10-220 of the Connecticut General Statutes. The use of these definitions for state purposes does not preclude districts from using separate definitions of excused and unexcused absences for their internal uses (including decisions on promotion/retention, grading, and disciplinary action).

Excused Absences

A student's absence from school shall be considered excused if written documentation of the reason for the absence has been submitted within **10** school days of the student's return to school or in accordance with Section 10-210 of the Connecticut General Statutes and meets the following criteria:

A. For absences one through nine, a student's absences from school are considered excused when the student's parent/guardian approves such absence and submits appropriate documentation. The following situations do not count toward a student's 9 excused absences:

-Field Trips

-Travel for school activity or athletics

-Suspension from school

B. For the **tenth absence and all absences thereafter**, a student's absences from school are only considered excused for the following reasons:

1. student illness (Note: all student illness absences must be verified by an appropriately licensed medical professional to be deemed excused, regardless of the length of absence);

2. student's observance of a religious holiday;

3. death in the student's family or other emergency beyond the control of the student's family;

4. mandated court appearances (additional documentation required);

5. the lack of transportation that is normally provided by a district other than the one the student attends (no parental documentation is required for this reason); or

6. extraordinary educational opportunities pre-approved by district administrators and in accordance with Connecticut State Department of Education guidance.

Unexcused Absences

All absences not reported by a parent /guardian call and a note are considered unexcused. In addition, all absences after the 9th absence mentioned above are considered unexcused.

Excessive Absences

1. Connecticut law requires school personnel to promptly notify the State of Connecticut Department of Children and Families under certain circumstances, including suspected educational neglect. Consequently, given that chronic absenteeism or tardiness seriously impedes a student's academic progress. if a student continues to be chronically absent*, the principal (or designee) may contact DCF or the New Milford Juvenile Review Panel.

2. Given reasonable cause to believe a student is truant* from school, the school administration may ask the school social worker to visit the student's home to verify the cause of the absence. Such home visits may be scheduled outside of regular school hours.

3. The administration reserves the right not to excuse students who are chronically absent and to require written verification of reason.

*Connecticut State Statute Sec. 10-198a – Truant: Any child between the ages of seven and sixteen who has had four (4) unexcused absences from school in any one month or ten (10) unexcused absences in any school year. Sec. 10-Habitual Truant: Any child having twenty (20) unexcused absences within a school year.

*For more information regarding truancy, please refer to Appendix A and/or BOE policies found on the district website.

Chronic absence is defined as missing 10 percent or greater of the total number of days enrolled during the school year for any reason. It includes both excused, unexcused, out-of-school suspensions, and in-school suspensions that last more than one-half of the school day. A doctor's note(s) will be required of any student who is repeatedly absent. Students who have been chronically tardy will be reported to the administration. Student and/or parent(s) may meet with the principal and/or assistant principal to discuss methods to improve attendance. If a student continues to be a chronic absentee, paperwork will be filed with the juvenile court. Given reasonable cause to believe a student is truant from school, the school administration may ask the school social worker to visit the student's home to verify the cause of the absence. Such home visits may be scheduled outside regular school hours. The administration reserves the right not to excuse students who are chronically absent and to require written verification of reason. If absences are unexcused, student may not make up missed work.

If a student is absent excused for three (3) days due to illness or injury, a parent/guardian should contact the team leader to ask teachers to prepare work to be done at home. Parents/guardians may pick the work up in the main office. This courtesy will not be extended for those students absent on a day-to-day basis or on leave for vacation, or out of school activities. We recommend that students use the Parent Portal or call classmates to check on missed work.

Reporting of Absences

Communication is an essential element in the total program. Parents/guardians must notify the attendance office at 860-354-2204, x195 to report a student's absence. This line is available 24 hours a day. If no call is received, an attempt to contact a parent/guardian will be made. If no contact is made on the day of the absence, or no valid reason (as stated above) for the absence to be excused is presented within 10 days, either by phone or by written note, the absence will be considered unexcused. If a student is tardy to school after 7:35 a.m., a medical doctor's note must be given to the secretary in order for the tardy to be excused. In accordance with the State Board of Education's definition of attendance, students need to be in school for at least half of the instructional school day/ four hours to be reported as in attendance for the day. (If there is a late opening or an early dismissal, then the student must be in attendance for half of the school day hours.) Any student who is tardy to school must report to the office for admission to school if entering after 7:35a.m. We solicit the cooperation of parents in helping their students to arrive at school on time.

Documentation of Absence

Documentation is a written explanation of the nature of and reason for the absence as well as the length of absence. This includes a signed note from the student's parent or guardian, a signed note from a school official that spoke in person with the parent or guardian regarding the absence, or a note confirming the absence by the school nurse or by

a licensed medical professional. All documentation of absences must be provided within **10 days** of the absence. This note can be sent electronically, however, it must contain the parent/guardian signature.

Family Vacations

Vacations disrupt the learning process. It is for that reason we ask that, except in highly unusual circumstances, parents schedule family vacations during the summertime or during school recesses, such as those in December and April. Please be mindful for those who might be planning a vacation in June, snow days are added to the calendar in June. If the principal has not been notified, the absences will be marked unexcused. If unexcused, students will not be able to make up missed work. If excused, the responsibility of completion of the missed work is the student's, not the teacher's. (Family vacation days are only excused if a student has under 9 absences in accordance with state law.) Teachers will give the student a general idea of what work will be missed, but lesson plans are altered by daily class experience. When the student returns from vacation, the student has five (5) days to complete all missed work. Any work not completed will be given a grade of zero. The family vacation form can be found on our SMS website located under forms.

Homebound Tutoring

Students who are absent for an extended period of time because of illness may request home instruction upon completion and acceptance of the medical questionnaire. All parent requests for home instruction will be directed to the student's Administrator and will be provided for medical reasons that meet the State and Federal mandates for such services. Once instruction has been approved, a teacher will report for a period of two hours per subject each week. All instruction will take place at the public library. Notwithstanding the foregoing, circumstances may sometimes require that instruction be provided remotely or virtually, which will be at the discretion of the school administration. If it is determined that instruction needs to take place in the home, an adult person must be present in the home during the instruction period. Any questions or problems should be directed to administration.

Afterschool / Evening events

Students must be present in school to attend afterschool or evening events. Students who are absent the day of the event, or who are serving in-school suspensions, out-of-school suspensions, or expulsions may not attend.

Extended Illness

If it appears that a student will be absent for at least three consecutive weeks due to illness or injury, parents should contact the school guidance counselors about home tutoring. They will provide the necessary forms and help with arrangements.

Notification to Parents

Whenever a student in grade K-8 is absent from school and no communication has been received by school personnel that the parent or guardian is aware of the student's absence, the school shall notify the parent of the student's absence. Notification shall be by telephone and by mail. The mailed notice will include the state-mandated warnings, which may result in a complaint filed with the Department of Children and Families ["DCF"].

CONDUCT AND SCHOOL DISCIPLINE

Maintaining discipline within the school is an essential component of ensuring a safe environment in which students can pursue their education and access the school's many extracurricular activities. Despite the school's implementation of PBIS strategies and the use of restorative practices, there are occasions when students may engage in conduct which constitutes a violation of the school district's disciplinary policies, and our school's behavioral expectations. At all times, students are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that does not interfere with the ongoing operation of the school. Disruptive, discourteous, and unsafe behaviors or actions that violate the rights of others will result in disciplinary action. The use of profanity will not be tolerated at any time. Disciplinary actions may include removal from an activity, parent conference, re-teaching, in-school suspension, or out-of-school suspension, or expulsion.

Students and their parents are expected to learn and abide by the district's disciplinary policies and the school's behavioral expectations. Although this is not an all-inclusive list, these SMS behavior expectations include the following conduct with which students must adhere:

- 1. No items are to be sold on school grounds or on school transportation.
- 2. Fireworks, including sparklers, poppers, and **all** similar devices, are not permitted in school.
- 3. Birthday balloons/bouquets may not be sent or brought to SMS. The hallways, classrooms, and school buses cannot accommodate these articles in a safe manner.
- 4. Students must leave their skateboards at home; they may not transport them on school buses. They cause a hazard to others as well as to the rider, and they pose a disruption. Skateboards are not to be in school or on school grounds at any time. This includes the hours when school is not in session.

A complete listing of the school district's student expectations, including student conduct, is set forth in the 5000 Series of the New Milford Board of Education's Policies, which can be found in their entirety on the Board Policies webpage of the New Milford Public School District website at https://www.newmilfordps.org/boepolicies.

PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE

Although the school will to the extent possible seek to implement progressive discipline, incremental interventions may not be appropriate in cases in which the misconduct is sufficiently serious as to constitute a basis for suspension or expulsion under Board Policy 5114. In such cases -- and except for conduct for which Connecticut law and Board Policy 5114 mandates expulsion – the administration will determine the appropriate disciplinary consequence.

Classroom Interventions

If the usual interventions between a teacher and a student fail to resolve a concern, the parent/guardian can expect to be contacted by the classroom teacher. The following are a series of procedures that may be taken to resolve a classroom situation:

- 1. Tier 1 Strategies & Restorative practices;
- 2. Teacher/student conference;
- 3. Re-teaching;
- 4. Parent/teacher conference;
- 5. Guidance intervention;
- 6. Administration.

Re-Teaching

Teachers may assign study hall, and/or before/after school re-teaching opportunities. **This re-teaching opportunity is a disciplinary consequence and has precedence over other school activities**. The student is expected to attend. It is a time when the student and the teacher can discuss strategies for clarifying inappropriate behavior. Re-teachings are not detentions. It is an opportunity for students to conference with an adult mentor. If students are absent on the assigned day, they may complete it at a later time at the teacher's discretion. Re-teaching opportunities requiring longer periods of time will be held after school. The teacher will send home a courtesy notice with the student. The student must return the note with the parent's signature. Transportation home after re-teaching will be the responsibility of the parent. We realize that working parents are inconvenienced when they have to pick up their child from an after school re-teaching session. We hope to encourage parent-child communication about school behavior and support of behavior improvement.

When re-teaching fails to improve student behavior, teachers will refer behavioral concerns to administration. Students who continually have difficulty following school rules will be placed on administrative support. The student and administrator will meet weekly and whenever a teacher referral is submitted.

Suspension

Students may be suspended for any of the actions listed in the Administrative Referral Procedures, which occur not only during the regular day, but also on school buses, at bus stops, and during school-sponsored activities including dances, sporting events, and field trips. Students may also be subject to suspension for certain off-campus conduct, including but not limited to cyberbullying or the transmission of sexually inappropriate, threatening, or harassing images or comments. A full listing of suspendable offenses is set forth in Board Policy 5114, which is included in the 5000 Series on the "Board Policies" webpage on the New Milford Public School District website: https://www.newmilfordps.org/boepolicies.

In most cases a suspended student is given one day's notice prior to serving a suspension; however, administrators may deem it necessary for parents to come to the school immediately to discuss serious behavior concerns.

The parents of a suspended student will be notified by telephone, if possible, and by letter within twenty-four (24) to forty-eight (48) hours after the suspension is issued. The superintendent is also notified per the discipline procedure. No student will be suspended until that student has had an informal hearing with an administrator during which time the student will be informed of the charges and be given the opportunity to respond. Students may be suspended during the school day for short periods of time if warranted.

In-School Suspension ["ISS"]

In-school suspension allows students to attend school and complete their academic responsibilities. Should a student refuse to serve an "in-school" suspension, the refusal will be considered insubordination in violation of Board Policy 5114, and the student may be given an "out-of-school" suspension that may be twice the amount of the "in-school" suspension days. Students may either bring a bag lunch or order a lunch from the school's cafeteria.

Expected Outcomes of ISS

- 1. To have students learn to take responsibility for their own behavior.
- 2. To have students learn not to repeat the behaviors that placed them in ISS.

Expectations for ISS

- 1. Sit in assigned seat at all times;
- 2. No talking or disruptions will be allowed;
- 3. Use of device for instructional purposes only and based on teacher discretion and the BYOD policy;
- 4. Students are to remain alert and do assigned work;
- 5. Raise hand for a bathroom privilege (one in the morning and one in the afternoon);

- 6. School rules, as outlined in the handbook, must be obeyed at all times;
- 7. Students who are placed in ISS may not participate in any school activities—day or evening;
- 8. Students are expected to follow the directions of the ISS supervisor at all times.

Out-of-School Suspension ["OSS"]

During the period of "out-of-school" suspension, the student may not participate in any school activities and is not allowed on school grounds <u>AT ANY TIME (before, during or after school hours) on the day(s) that the suspension is in effect</u>. A STUDENT VIOLATING THIS RULE WILL BE CONSIDERED TRESPASSING AND SUBJECT TO ARREST. While on suspension, the student must get assignments from all of his/her teachers for the number of days under suspension. School work should be kept up-to-date.

<u>Appeals</u>

Disciplinary decisions may be appealed. Either the student or parent must put the appeal request in writing within 24 hours of the disciplinary action. He/she must first ask for reconsideration by the person issuing the consequence. He/she may then go to the next person in the administrative hierarchy: teacher, to assistant principal, and then to the principal.

Expulsion

"Expulsion" is defined as exclusion from school privileges for more than 10 consecutive days due to serious offenses. Except in emergencies, a student cannot be expelled without first being offered the opportunity to have an expulsion hearing before the Board of Education, a panel of the Board, or a hearing officer appointed by, and acting on behalf of, the Board. Connecticut law empowers the Board to expel a student for up to one calendar year.

Board Policy Section 5114 sets forth conduct for which the student can be expelled. Although such expulsions are generally within the discretion of the Board of Education, Section 10-233d of the Connecticut General Statutes and Board Policy 5114 enumerate conduct for which an expulsion is mandated. This conduct includes: 1) possession on school grounds or at a school-sponsored activity of a firearm, deadly weapon, dangerous instrument, or martial arts weapon; 2) possession off school grounds of such a firearm in violation of Section 29-35 of the Connecticut General Statutes; 3) possession and use such a firearm, instrument or weapon in the commission of a crime; or 4) on or off school grounds, offered for sale or distribution a controlled substance.

BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICIES

The New Milford Board of Education has promulgated policies pertaining to the New Milford Public Schools. The complete set of these Board Policies are available for review on the New Milford Public Schools' website at <u>https://www.newmilfordps.org/boepolicies</u>. The 5000 Series of these Policies enumerate and discuss the Board's student expectations. It is the obligation of both students and their parents or guardians to be aware of these policies, particularly as they pertain to student matters. Many, if not most, of these policies are authorized by or reflect either federal or Connecticut laws that are applicable to school districts and students. Sometimes, the Board Policies will change during – or between – school years, depending upon changes in the law or upon circumstances, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, and it is therefore incumbent upon students and their parents or guardians to remain aware of any such changes.

What follows is a list of some Policies that are applicable to students. This is a *non-exclusive* list, and the fact that some Policies are not replicated or otherwise specifically referenced in this handbook does not mean that they do not exist, or that they can be ignored or that they will not be applied to students.

AIDS INSTRUCTION EXEMPTION

In accordance with state guidelines, the New Milford School System will offer instruction about Acquired Immune

Deficiency Syndrome. Parents will be afforded opportunities to notify school authorities in writing in the event they wish their child to be excluded from the AIDS program. If a parent has notified the school authorities that they wish their child be excluded, that child will be given an alternative instruction program. No academic sanction would be levied against any student who is provided with this alternative.

BULLYING, HAZING, TEASING, TAUNTING, AND INITIATIONS

Everyone has a duty to behave responsibly and courteously toward others. Any activity that humiliates, degrades, abuses, or endangers a person's physical or emotional health will not be tolerated. This includes bullying, teasing, hazing, taunting, and initiations of any kind. Appropriate disciplinary action will be taken, up to and including suspension and expulsion. Students who are victims or witnesses to any type of bullying should immediately report the incident to any SMS staff member. That person will alert the appropriate personnel. Please see Board Policies 5131.911 and 5114 for further information.

Removal/Suspension/Expulsion DEFINITIONS

- A. **"Bullying"** is defined as (A) the repeated use by one or more students of a written, oral or electronic communication directed at or referring to another student in the school district; or (B) a physical act or gesture by one or more students repeatedly directed at another student in the school district that (1) causes physical or emotional harm to such student or damage to the student's property; (2) places such student in reasonable fear of harm to himself/herself or of damage to his/her property; (3) creates a hostile environment at school for such student; (4) infringes on the rights of such student at school; or (5) substantially disrupts the educational process or the orderly operation of the school. Bullying shall include but not be limited to a written, oral or electronic communication or physical act or gesture based on any actual or perceived differentiating characteristic, such as race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, socio-economic status, academic status, physical appearance, or mental, physical developmental or sensory disability or by association with an individual or group who has or is perceived to have one or more of such characteristics.
- B. **"Cyberbullying"** is defined as any act of bullying through the use of the Internet, interactive and digital technologies, cellular mobile telephone or other mobile electronic devices or any electronic communications.

CHILDREN'S INTERNET PROTECTION ACT ["CIPA"]

Instruction

Computers: Acceptable Use of the Internet, Other Computer Networks and Internet Safety

The School District is pleased to make available to students access to interconnected computer systems within the District and to the Internet, the worldwide network that provides various means of accessing significant educational materials and opportunities.

In order for the school district to be able to continue to make its computer network and Internet access available, all students must take responsibility for appropriate and lawful use of this access. Students must understand that one student's misuse of the network and Internet access may jeopardize the ability of all students to enjoy such access. While the school's teachers and other staff will make reasonable efforts to supervise student use of the network and Internet access, they must have student cooperation in exercising and promoting responsible use of this access.

Below is the Responsible Use Policy (RUP) of the school district. Upon reviewing, signing, and returning this policy as the students have been directed, each student will be given the opportunity to enjoy Internet access at school and is agreeing to follow the policy. **Students must have their parents or guardians read and sign the policy.** The school district cannot provide access to any student who-does not return the policy as directed with the signatures of the student and his/her parents or guardians.

Listed below are the provisions of your agreement regarding computer network and Internet use. If you have any questions about these provisions, you should contact the person that your school has designated as the one to whom you can direct your questions. If any user violates this policy, the student's access will be denied, if not already provided, or withdrawn and he or she may be subject to additional disciplinary action.

RESPONSIBLE USE OF TECHNOLOGY, SOCIAL MEDIA, AND DISTRICT NETWORK SYSTEMS

Overview

The New Milford Public Schools Board of Education provides students, staff and community members with access to a large variety of technology and network resources which provide multiple opportunities to enhance learning within the school district network and on the Internet. Communication within the school district, the community and global entities are encouraged as part of 21st century skills. All learners need and deserve 21st century learning opportunities to thrive as tomorrow's leaders, workers, and citizens. However, all users must exercise appropriate and responsible use of District technology and information systems. Users include anyone authorized by administration to use the network. This policy is intended to promote the most effective, safe, productive, and instructionally sound uses of network information and communication tools.

Digital Citizen

Definition: "Self-monitored participation that reflects conscious interdependence with all (visible and less visible) community members." A responsible digital citizen is one who:

A. Respects one's self:

a. Users will select online names and logins that are appropriate and will consider the information and images that are posted online to ensure appropriateness. Users will not share login and password information.

B. Respects others:

a. Users will refrain from using District network systems and social media to bully, tease, or harass other people. Users will communicate in a professional respectful manner with anyone engaged.

C. Protects one's self and others:

a. Users will follow protocols that will protect themselves and others by reporting abuse and not forwarding inappropriate materials or communications.

D. Respects authorship:

a. Users will properly reference or cite work, websites, books, media, etc., used in any student work.

Responsible Use

Responsible use of the District's technology resources is expected to be ethical, respectful, and academically honest. Digital storage on district servers or on the cloud as well as technology devices used for any purpose will be treated as extensions of the District's technology. The Superintendent, or his or her designee, may review files and communications including electronic mail to ensure that users are using the system in accordance with District policy. Users should not have any expectation of privacy in files stored electronically. Electronic files, data and communications stored or disseminated through the District's technology may be subject to disclosure pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act.

Users may not access the District's networks without prior written authorization and are expected to comply with the following rules of network etiquette and citizenship, including but not limited to:

A. Use of the New Milford Public Schools network, technology devices, the student and parent portal, and social media must be consistent with the District's educational objectives and curriculum.

B. Transmission of material in violation of any local, Federal, or State law is prohibited.

C. Intentional or unintentional use of District resources to access or process, proxy sites, pornographic, obscene, sexually explicit, harassing, threatening or illegal material or communications or explicit text or files or files dangerous to the integrity of the network is strictly prohibited.

D. Cyberbullying is prohibited at all times, whether in district or out of district, on any device using any connection.E. Software, applications, and media may not be installed, downloaded or uploaded without having an approved Software Form from the Building Principal, Assistant Superintendent and Director of Technology.

F. Use of the District network for commercial activities, product advertisement, religious or political campaigning, lobbying, or solicitation of non-district material is prohibited.

G. Accessing unauthorized chat rooms or instant messaging using the District's network is prohibited.

H. Bypassing the District's content filter is strictly prohibited.

I. Users may not share their passwords and are expected to maintain their passwords privately and securely.

J. Users shall not vandalize, damage, disable, intentionally disrupt or degrade the District's technology systems or network and may be held personally and financially responsible for malicious or intentional damage or interruptions to network service, software, data, user accounts, hardware, and/or any other unauthorized use.

K. Files stored on District-managed or cloud networks are the property of the District and may be inspected at any time.

L. Materials published electronically must be for educational purposes. Administrators may monitor these materials to ensure compliance with content standards.

M. Each user is responsible for taking reasonable precautions to ensure he or she does not introduce viruses into the District's network. All material not belonging to the District must be scanned for viruses prior to being placed onto the District's computer system. Users should understand that their home computers and laptops might contain viruses. All disks, memory sticks or perpetual media (e.g., DVD, CD) transferred from these computers to the District's network must be scanned for viruses.

N. Users shall not "hack into," "snoop," monitor any network traffic or otherwise access data not intended for the user including, but not limited to, other users' files and administrative data.

O. Users shall not violate copyright or otherwise use the intellectual property of another individual or organization without permission.

P. Users shall not plagiarize (to take material created by others and presenting it as if it were one's own) or cheat (to deceive by trickery, mislead or fool).

Q. Users shall not send, transmit, or otherwise disseminate proprietary data, personally identifiable information about students or other confidential information.

Procedures for Use

A. Students shall receive education about the following:

a. Safety and security while using e-mail, chat rooms, social media, and other forms of electronic communications;

b. The dangers inherent in online disclosure of personally identifiable information; and

c. The consequences of unauthorized access including but not limited to hacking, cyber-bullying, and other unlawful or inappropriate activities online.

B. All student users and their parents are required to sign a written agreement annually, or at the time of enrollment, to abide by the terms and conditions of this policy and any administrative procedures and guidelines. If the agreement is not signed, District network privileges will not be given.

C. Students shall not (1) access or use another person's account without written permission; (2) share their password with anyone else or engage in activities that would reveal anyone's password; (3) allow others to access a computer that the user is logged on to; or (4) ever sign in, or attempt to sign in, as another person.

Violations and Sanctions

Accessing the Internet or District network is a privilege, not a right. Inappropriate use and violation of this or any other Board policy may result in cancellation of all network access. Inappropriate material is defined as any material or use that is inconsistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the educational mission of the District. Any user can be denied access temporarily or permanently if the school or District administrator determines that a user has used the Internet or District network in an inappropriate or unacceptable manner.

Students who violate any provision of this Responsible Use Policy will be subject to discipline, up to and including suspension and expulsion, as well as possible criminal prosecution or other legal action.

No Expectation of Privacy

All users are warned that there should be no expectation of privacy in connection with the use of the District's computer resources. Users should not create, store or use messages, files or other information which they do not want school authorities to see. The following reasons explain why users should have no expectation of privacy:

A. The District may have a duty under federal law to monitor on-line activities of users and enforce the use of protective measures. Authorized administrators and staff may review use of the District's computer resources and the Internet at any time, without reason or prior notice, to maintain system integrity and determine that users are acting responsibly or otherwise consistent with this policy.

B. Computer resources are owned, controlled, and maintained by the District. They are provided to staff and students to be used for educational purposes only. Files or any information stored on school-based networks are subject to periodic inspection and routine maintenance.

C. E-mail communications can be stored indefinitely on any number of computers. Copies of messages may be forwarded to others either electronically or on paper. In addition, e-mail sent to non-existent or incorrect user names may be delivered to persons that you never intended.

D. Use of passwords to gain access to the computer network or to encode particular files or messages does not imply that users have an expectation of privacy in such access or materials. The District has global passwords that permit it to access all material stored on the computer system, regardless of whether that material has been encoded with a particular user's password.

E. District personnel may receive or create e-mail messages and other documents that are public records that may be subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act.

Policy Violations

Users who become aware of any misuse of computer resources must immediately report the incident to the administration. Any violation of this policy may result in immediate termination of school-provided access to computer resources, including the Internet. Additional disciplinary action may be taken in keeping with existing policies, procedures and practices regarding the conduct, including but not limited to suspension and/or expulsion from school (students) or termination of employment (personnel). When appropriate, law enforcement agencies may be involved and legal action or prosecution may result.

Please see Board Policies 6141.321(a) and 4118.4/4218.4 or Appendix A for further information.

Responsible Use Policy Agreement New Milford Public Schools

What is the Responsible Use Policy Agreement?

The Responsible Use Policy was adopted by New Milford Public Schools Board of Education in 2017. The Responsible Use Policy (RUP) outlines the Board's specific expectations for students' use of the school system's electronic information resources, including the school system's computer networks and the Internet.

The RUP requires the preparation of the Responsible Use Policy Agreement which one parent (or legal guardian) and all students in grades first through twelve are required to sign and return to school before the student will be allowed to access and use these resources. By reading and signing this Agreement, you are giving your permission for your child to use these resources, and you are stating that you understand and will explain to your child what the Agreement means. Students in grades first through twelve are required to sign the Agreement to indicate that they understand the RUP and the Agreement and agree to abide by them.

New technologies have greatly expanded the amount and type of information available to students and teachers. In addition to our large collection of print media in the school libraries, each school has access to a large array of electronic information systems via electronic periodicals and encyclopedias and the Internet. However, access to so much information brings new responsibilities to use the resources and information responsibly and ethically. Below you will find a summary of the guidelines for accessing and using all the information obtained through these technologies. We teach a simple and straightforward version of the following guidelines starting in grade K, and we add more complex dimensions as students' progress through the school system.

Student Consent Form

As a user of the New Milford Public Schools' electronic information resources and computer networks, I have read, understand and will abide by the Responsible Use Agreement which implements the Responsible Use Policy. I understand that my signature and the signature of one of my parents or legal guardians are preconditions to my accessing and using the District's electronic information resources. I also specifically agree to the following:

- 1. I will use digital technology resources only for educational and research purposes that are consistent with the educational objectives of my teachers and the Board of Education.
- 2. I will use digital resources in a responsible, ethical and legal manner at all times. I will not intentionally do anything to another users' work on the resources.
- 3. I will not plagiarize. I will give appropriate citations to an author or resource as the source of information I find.
- 4. I will use digital technology resources as directed by a teacher or staff member.
- 5. I will be considerate of other users and data privacy when using District resources. I will be polite and use appropriate language at all times. My log-in and password will be kept private and not shared with other users.
- 6. I will send and receive electronic mail (email) appropriately for educational purposes. I will report any inappropriate email messages or any misuses of email immediately.
- 7. I will not give out any personal information regarding myself or anyone else in the district while using email.
- 8. I will never intentionally damage, degrade or disrupt the electronic information resources, including computer services or computer equipment. I will not tamper with computer hardware or software, vandalize or change data in any way, intentionally introduce computer viruses, attempt to gain access to restricted or unauthorized networks or network services or violate copyright laws. I understand that such activity may be a crime.
- 9. I will use the portal for educational requirements and will use appropriate language at all times.

- 10. If I do not follow the rules outlined in this Agreement and in the Responsible Use Policy, I know that I may lose my privilege to use the District's electronic information resources. I also know that I may be disciplined for not following the rules and that my parents and I may have to pay for any damage I cause because of my intentional misuse of these resources.
- 11. I am aware that some violations of the Responsible Use Policy may also be violations of local, state and federal laws and regulations and that I may be prosecuted for violating those laws.

Student Name:

Signed:

Date:

(Student)

DRUGS, ALCOHOL, AND INHALANT MATERIALS

Each student referred to the administration or their designee for suspicion of and/or actual use, possession, or distribution of alcohol, medications, "look-alikes," controlled drugs and/or drug paraphernalia will be dealt with in compliance with Board of Education Policy 5114. Connecticut law and Board Policy 5114 mandate an expulsion for the sale or distribution of a controlled substance, regardless of whether such sale or distribution occurred on or off school grounds. An example of distribution that constituted a mandatory basis for expulsion would be a student handing, or otherwise sharing, a vape device that contained THC to another student.

ELECTRONIC DEVICES, STUDENTS

Use of Beepers - Paging Devices/Cellular Telephones and Laser Pointers

Students shall not use cellular telephones during the instructional day except as permitted by the school district's "Bring Your Own Device" ("B.Y.O.D.") guidelines.

Students shall not possess or use a laser pointer, unless under teacher supervision for instructional purposes, while on school property, on school transportation or while attending a school sponsored activity on or off school property.

The School Principal may grant written permission for possession and use of a remotely activated paging device by a student if the student or his parent or guardian establishes to the satisfaction of the Principal that a reasonable basis exists for the possession and use of the device. Nothing in this policy shall be interpreted to prohibit a student with a disability from possessing and using a page device or cellular telephone in a manner consistent with the student's Individualized Education Plan ["IEP"] or Section 504 Plan.

Bring Your Own Device ["B.Y.OD."]

Guidelines for the Use of Personal Technology on Campus

Technology has changed the way we approach education as we prepare our students for future opportunities. We understand the many positive educational benefits of using technology in the classroom and importance of the integration of technology in our curriculum. In an effort to encourage our students and continue to develop their technology skills, students in the New Milford Public Schools may use their own technology at school for educational purposes.

Definition of Personal Technology

For purposes of this policy, "personal technology" means a privately owned, wireless, and portable electronic hand-held equipment that includes, but is not limited to, existing and emerging mobile communication systems and smart technologies, portable internet devices, Personal Digital Assistants ["PDAs"], hand-held entertainment systems or portable information technology systems that can be used for word processing, wireless Internet access, image capture/recording, sound recording and information transmitting/receiving/storing, etc.

Use of Technology for Instructional Purposes

Use of technology in school is a privilege which comes with great responsibility. Students will only be allowed to use their laptops, tablets, cell phones or other electronic devices for <u>educational</u> purposes at school. Checking personal email, socializing via texts or instant messages, or otherwise engaging in personal pursuits is prohibited during the instructional day.

Internet Access on School Grounds

Only the Internet gateway provided by the school may be accessed while on campus. Personal technology, including cell phones and cell network adapters are not permitted to be used to access outside Internet sources at any time.

Compliance with other Board Policies

When participating in B.Y.O.D. students must adhere to the Student Code of Conduct, as well as all Board policies, particularly the New Milford School District's Acceptable Use Policy. This means that students who use their personal technology at school must abide by the established policies regarding acceptable use of the Internet, bullying, harassment, cheating, threats, student confidentiality and other misconduct that violates school rules or causes a disruption of educational activities.

Additional Guidelines

- Teachers have the discretion to determine when students may use personal technology in the classroom. Students must immediately comply with their teachers' requests to shut down or put away personal technology;
- All personal technology must be in silent mode;
- Students may not use personal technology during any assessments or tests unless otherwise directed by school personnel;
- Students shall not transmit, post or otherwise publicly share photographs or videos that they have taken of any person on school grounds or in a school vehicle.

Security and Damages

Responsibility to keep a student's personal technology secure rests with the individual owner. The **New Milford Public School District, including its staff or employees, is not liable for any device stolen or damaged on campus.** If a device is stolen or damaged, it will be handled through the administrative office in a manner similar to other personal property. It is recommended that students personalize their devices for easy identification and utilize protective cases. The New Milford District Technology Department will <u>not</u> service any non-district owned technology, which includes troubleshooting, software or hardware issues. Students are responsible for securing their devices and making sure that they have up-to-date anti-virus software installed, if applicable.

Failure to Follow B.Y.O.D. Guidelines

Misuse of personal technology in violation of these guidelines may result in the loss of access privileges, a prohibition on the use or possession of personal technology on school grounds, or other disciplinary consequences up to and including suspensions and expulsion.

B.Y.O.D. Agreement

In exchange for the privilege of using personal technology at school, we acknowledge and agree to each of the following:

- 1. The District's policies on student conduct and Acceptable Use of the Internet apply to the use of personal technology. It is the student's responsibility to abide by those policies when using personal technology on school grounds;
- 2. Only the Internet gateway provided by the school will be accessed on school grounds. The school's network filters will be applied to the student's connection and no attempts will be made to bypass the network restrictions by using personal access to the Internet;
- 3. There is no expectation of personal privacy in the use of personal technology at school. The District's network administrators have the ability to identify users and monitor all B.Y.O.D. devices logged on to the network;

- 4. Personal technology may be searched by school personnel if there are reasonable grounds for suspecting that the search will turn up evidence that a student has violated or is violating either the law or the rules of the school;
- 5. The school district has the right to examine any device that is suspected of causing problems or was the source of an attack or virus infection;
- 6. Misuse of personal technology may result in the loss of access privileges, a prohibition on the use or possession of personal technology on school grounds, or other disciplinary consequences up to and including suspension and expulsion.

I/We understand and will abide by the above B.Y.O.D. guidelines. As the parent or guardian, I hereby consent to my child's use of personal technology at school. I/We agree to hold the District harmless for any damages suffered by my child or me including those arising from unauthorized use, loss of data, and exposure to potentially harmful or inappropriate material arising from the use of personal technology at school.

Name of Student (please print)		
	DATE:	
Signature of Student		
Name of Parent or Guardian (please print)		
	DATE:	
Signature of Parent or Guardian		

GAMBLING

No form of gambling is allowed. Card play is prohibited.

HEALTH TOPICS OPT-OUT PROVISION

The New Milford Public Schools 6th, 7th, and 8th grade Health Curriculum features different units of study. Two of these areas of study are Sexual Assault and Abuse Prevention and Awareness. State law allows parents the opportunity to notify school authorities in writing in the event you wish your child to be excluded from either or both of these programs. Once written notification has been received, your child will be given an alternative instruction program during this unit of study. No academic sanction will be levied against any student who is provided with this alternative. Parents have the opportunity to come to school and meet with our Health and P.E. staff to review what will be taught before making a decision to opt-out. For more details on units being taught or if you have any other questions, please do not hesitate to contact your child's health teacher via email.

METAL DETECTORS

The Board of Education authorizes the use of hand-held or walk-through metal detectors to check a student's person or personal effects. School officials or law enforcement officers may conduct metal detector checks of groups or individuals if the checks are done in a minimally intrusive, nondiscriminatory manner (e.g. on all students in a randomly selected class; on every third individual entering an athletic event.) Metal detector checks of groups of individuals may not be used to single out a particular individual or category of individuals.

If a school official or a law enforcement officer has reasonable suspicion to believe that a particular student is in possession of an illegal or unauthorized metal-containing object or weapon, he or she may conduct a metal detector check of the student's person and personal effects. A student's failure to permit a metal detector check as provided in this policy will be considered grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including suspension and expulsion.

SEARCH OF PROPERTY AND STUDENTS

Students are subject to reasonable search and seizures. School officials are empowered to conduct searches of a particular student and school property when there is a reasonable cause to believe that the student may be in possession of drugs, weapons, alcohol, inappropriate photos or video, or other materials in violation of school policy or state law. School staff have the right to require a student to turn over his or her device/cell phone if the school has reasonable suspicion to believe that the student has used, or is using, it inappropriately -- including but not limited to the transmission or storage of sexual, obscene, nude, threatening, bullying, harassing, or otherwise inappropriate words or images – and the student shall be expected to provide school administration with the device/cell phone's password or other unlocking information in order for the school to conduct its investigation. School property shall remain under the control of school officials and shall be subject to search. Teachers have been directed to send students whose health is in question to the nurse.

HARASSMENT

STATEMENT OF POLICY:

All of the school district's programs and activities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin, sex, disability or, any other basis prohibited by law, and it is the policy of the Board to prohibit conduct and behavior by any employee, agent, volunteer, student, or third party in the New Milford school system that may be deemed to be unlawful discrimination, including but not limited to harassment. Students will exhibit conduct that is respectful and courteous to employees, to fellow students, and to the public. Any person found in violation of this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including suspension or expulsion from school for students or dismissal for school personnel.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Sexual harassment is prohibited by both federal and Connecticut law, as well as by Board Policy. Sexual harassment does not only depend upon the offender's intention, but also upon how the recipient of it perceives the behavior or is affected by it. Sexual harassment can originate from a person of either sex against a person of the opposite or same sex and from peers as well as adults. Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, request for sexual favors, or any other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature including, but not limited to:

- insulting or degrading sexual remarks or conduct;
- threats or suggestions that a student's submission to, or rejection of, unwelcome conduct will in any way influence a decision regarding the student;
- conduct of a sexual nature that substantially interferes with the student's learning or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive learning environment.

Examples of specific behaviors that could constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

• attempted rape/rape, sexual name calling, display of unwanted affections, cornering/blocking, inappropriate gestures, sexually explicit jokes/cartoons/pictures, inappropriate touching, sexual rumors, overly personal conversations, harassing telephone calls, leers, sexually explicit comments.

<u>ALL FORMS OF DISCRIMINATORY HARASSMENT</u>, including but not limited to insults, offensive verbal and physical conduct, stalking, intimidation and interference with a student's performance, or learning environment are in violation of this policy.

THIS POLICY STRICTLY PROHIBITS ANY HARASSMENT OR CONDUCT OF A SEXUAL NATURE BETWEEN EMPLOYEES AND STUDENTS.

STANDARDS:

An alleged infraction of this policy will be reported to the Superintendent or school administrator. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER LAW, CONFIDENTIALITY WILL BE MAINTAINED. NO REPRISALS OR RETALIATION WILL BE ALLOWED TO OCCUR AS A RESULT OF THE GOOD FAITH REPORTING OF AN ALLEGED INFRACTION. In the absence of a victim's complaint, the Board, upon learning of, or having reason to

suspect the occurrence of any sexual misconduct will ensure that an investigation is promptly commenced by appropriate individuals.

Enforcement

Violation of this policy will not be permitted and may result in disciplinary action up to and including suspension or expulsion from school for students or discharge for staff members.

Other Harassment

Federal and/or state law also prohibits harassment that is based upon or motivated by a student's race, color, religion, natural origin, age, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, disability or mental status. See Board Policy #5145.5 (Statement in Relation to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, and Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973) and 5145.6 (Grievance Procedure).

Title IX protects students from gender-based discrimination, including harassment. Similarly, Title VI protects students from discrimination, including harassment, based upon race, color, or national origin. Section 504 protects students from discrimination, including harassment, that is based upon the student's actual or perceived disability. Connecticut law also protects students against discrimination that is based upon the student's race, color, religion, natural origin, age, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, disability or mental status.

Verbal and physical harassment is against the law and the policies of the school district. There are very strict guidelines to which organizations must adhere in order to maintain compliance with these laws.

Guidelines for harassment are very simple. No person may do or say anything that causes another person to feel uncomfortable or threatened in a place where he or she must go: school, work, church, the corner store. People have a right to go to these places without fear of being in an uncomfortable, or worse, a threatening situation.

The following are some examples of harassment:

- sexually laden names;
- denigrating names or terms related to a student's race, color, religion, natural origin, age, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, disability or mental status
- threats or demands of the other person;
- verbal put downs;
- sometimes seemingly innocent teasing;
- unwanted physical touching or poking;
- graffiti;
- sexual rumors;
- insults or heckling;
- pulling clothes or holding a person from leaving;
- staring;
- dirty jokes or stereotypical jokes;
- threats either direct or indirect.
- posts in Social Media
- text messages

If this happens to a student:

- first, request that the other person stop;
- next, if the other person does not comply with the request and cease the unwanted actions, then student should request assistance from a supervising adult in the immediate area;

• lastly, if it continues, then student should immediately request help from his/her school counselor and administrator.

Students who continue to harass will be either warned or assigned an immediate disciplinary consequence. Consequences can range from a suspension, to a hearing before the school district's harassment officers, Assistant Superintendent Alisha DiCorpo and/or the Human Resources Director, and ultimately to an expulsion.

Harassment cannot be explained away. It is not what someone means. It is how someone views actions or how it affects him/her. If what someone is doing is objectionable to the other person and he/she is asked to stop, then that person needs to comply.

Reporting Harassment – Complaint Procedure

Board Policies 5145.5 and 5145.5 reg set forth the Board's procedures for reporting, investigating, and resolving claims of unlawful harassment.

For questions or complaints regarding the district's policy of non-discrimination, please contact the Title IX/Section 504 Coordinators:

Section 504 & Title IX Coordinator for Students Ms. Holly Hollander, Assistant Superintendent New Milford Board of Education 50 East Street, New Milford, CT 06776 860-354-3235 <u>Title IX Coordinator for Staff</u> Ms. Catherine Gabianelli, Director of H.R. New Milford Board of Education 50 East Street, New Milford, CT 06776 860-210-2200

SMOKING

Board of Education policy prohibits smoking or chewing of tobacco and use of tobacco products in the school building or on school property. Any open display of smoking materials (whether lighted or not) in the building or on school grounds will be considered a violation of smoking rules. The term "smoking" includes the use of vapor products and electronic devices that stimulate smoking by delivering nicotine or other substances by the inhalation of a vapor. Smoking is also forbidden on school buses, during field trips, or at any school function where students are under the supervision of the school personnel. Students may not carry or place in lockers any tobacco products or lighters. For more information, please refer to BOE Policy 5131.6, "Drugs, Alcohol, and Tobacco."

STATE TESTING

Students in grades 3-8 will participate in Connecticut standardized assessments. The Smarter Balanced Assessment for Mathematics and Language Arts will be administered in the spring to students in each grade level, along with the NGSS Science assessment to students in grade 8. These assessments ask students to demonstrate their understanding of important concepts not only to evaluate educational goals, but also to measure student performance. All assessment information will adhere to all federal and state privacy laws and that the use of any student specific data is limited to use by the Connecticut State Department of Education and the New Milford Public Schools. Assessment data is used by teachers and administrators to inform classroom instruction that ties directly to curricular standards. Data is utilized to inform placement decisions in areas such as World Language, Math, the Talented and Gifted program, and Intervention classes to name a few. For more information, please refer to BOE Policy 6146.2, "Statewide Mastery Examinations."

STUDENT NUTRITION AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY (STUDENT WELLNESS)

The New Milford Board of Education shall use a coordinated school health model in order to make wellness a cornerstone of our educational program. This well-rounded approach to school health connects the various components of health education, physical education, nutrition services, health promotion activities for staff, school health services, counseling and psychological support services, a safe and healthy school environment, and parent and community involvement. The teamwork that is inherent in this comprehensive model is intended to build

momentum toward a program that supports positive dietary and lifestyle practices that are essential for students to achieve their academic potential, full physical and mental growth and lifelong health and well-being.

The entire school environment, not just the classroom, shall be aligned with healthy school goals to positively influence the student's understanding, beliefs and habits as they relate to good nutrition and regular physical activity.

Guiding Principles:

- The Board of Education delegates the responsibility for developing, implementing, monitoring, reviewing and revising the school district's wellness policy guidelines (administrative regulations) to a Wellness Advisory Council comprised of the following members: parents, students, school food service personnel, members of the board of education, administrators, the public, school nurse, physical education teacher, health education teacher and any other person that the team wishes to invite to help achieve its goals;
- The Wellness Advisory Council will create a wellness plan that addresses nutrition education, physical education and physical activity, school meals, beverages and other food, communication and promotion and measurement and evaluation of the plan;
- All students in grades K-12 will have opportunities, support, and encouragement to be physically active on a daily basis;
- Curriculum:
 - The physical education program shall be a standards-based, sequential physical education curriculum taught in grades K-12 by qualified physical education teachers. A key component of this program is to teach students how to achieve and maintain a healthy level of personal fitness;
 - Nutrition education shall be offered in grades K-12 as part of a planned, sequential, standards-based comprehensive health education program taught by highly qualified teachers;
- Foods and beverages sold or served under school auspices during the instructional school day will meet or exceed the nutrition recommendations of the USDA Dietary Guidelines for Americans;
- The District shall provide meals that follow the USDA requirements for Federal School Meal Programs under 7CFR Part 210 and 220;
- Highly qualified nutrition professionals will administer the school meal programs, and will provide affordable, nutrient-dense foods. Guidelines for age-appropriate portion size and maximum amount of fat, sodium, sugar and other additives in foods served and sold will be established and reviewed according to current scientific and medical research;
- Meals will be served in a relaxed, enjoyable climate, with adequate clean, safe space for eating.
- School menus shall be planned in order to meet or exceed state and national nutritional standards. Nutritious and healthy foods, such as fresh or dried fruits, vegetables, low-fat dairy foods, whole grains, and 100% natural fruit and vegetable juices and water, shall be made available wherever food is sold in the District;
- Healthy foods and beverages shall be encouraged at school sponsored activities, such as fundraisers, parties and sporting events. In addition, the District will only permit those foods and beverages that are permitted under state law (in particular, Connecticut General Statutes §§ 10-221p and 10-221q and the guidelines established by the State Department of Education) to be sold to students;
- The district highly values the health and well-being of every staff member and shall plan and implement activities and policies that support personal efforts by staff members to maintain a healthy lifestyle and that encourage staff members to serve as role models;
- Measurement and evaluation:
 - Establish a baseline of school wellness in each school by conducting a self-assessment using standard instruments;
 - Assign school-based leadership and responsibility in each site to monitor compliance to achieve policy goals;
 - $\circ~$ The Superintendent and/or his/her designee will ensure compliance with the policy and its regulations.

*Birthday and other celebratory events should not be part of the school day; we encourage parents to celebrate students' birthdays outside of school.

USE OF DOGS TO SEARCH SCHOOL PROPERTY

The Board shall permit the administration to invite law enforcement agencies or other qualified agencies or individuals to search school property with dogs trained for the purpose of detecting the presence of illegal substances, when necessary to protect the health and safety of students, employees or property, and to detect the presence of illegal substances or contraband, including alcohol and/or drugs.

WEAPONS

In accordance with a directive from the Superintendent of Schools and Connecticut law, no student, staff member or other individual is permitted to bring any firearm (registered or unregistered), facsimiles thereof, weapons – including, but not limited to, martial arts weapons -- or dangerous instruments onto school property at any time with the sole exception of duly authorized law enforcement officers. Items that are not permitted on school property include, but are not limited to a firearm or incendiary device as defined in Board Policy 5114, chains, knives, box cutters, razor blades, pipes, pepper spray, tasers or similar devices that are designed to deliver an electric shock, batons, bats, any martial arts weapons as defined in Board Policy 5114, and any dangerous instrument, which can be any item that is deliberately used to inflict injury, such as pens, pencils, paper clips, elastic bands, and similar items. The definition of "dangerous instrument" is more fully set forth in Board Policy 5114.

[IF YOU ARE UNSURE WHETHER OR NOT A PARTICULAR ITEM MAY BE CLASSIFIED AS A FIREARM, WEAPON, OR DANGEROUS INSTRUMENT, PLEASE CHECK WITH YOUR SCHOOL ADMINISTRATOR.]

In those cases in which a student is reported to have brought, possessed, exchanged, or used any of the above-referenced firearms, weapons, or dangerous instrument in school, onto, or awaiting, a school bus, or at school-sponsored activities on or off school property, that student will be immediately referred to the principal or his/her designee.

Action will be taken in accordance with Board Policies, up to and including suspension and expulsion as provided, or required, by Connecticut law and Board Policy 5114.

NOTE: Students are encouraged to notify either a teacher, staff member, or the administration of any activity they believe to be suspicious. Students who find firearms, weapons, or dangerous instruments are advised to seek adult assistance immediately and are advised not to touch the weapon. A student who finds a firearm, weapon, or dangerous instrument and immediately advises a teacher or other adult, shall not be considered in possession of such device.

GENERAL INFORMATION

AED PLACEMENT & USE

Our school is equipped with automated external defibrillators (AED) around the building. There are 2 AEDs located on the second floor and there are 2 AEDs located on the first floor.

AEROSOLS, PERFUMES, AND FRAGRANCES

Due to the increase in the number of people suffering from asthma and other breathing difficulties, we ask students and staff not to use heavy perfumes, colognes, aftershave lotions, and scented spray deodorants. Unfortunately, the ingredients in these fragrances are known to trigger asthmatic attacks in others.

2021-2022 SMS Bell Schedule					
Time	Min.	Period			
7:25-7:30	5	Homeroom			
7:30-8:18	48	A			
8:18-8:21	3	passing			
8:21-9:09	48	В			
9:09-9:12	3	passing			
9:12-10:00	48	С			
10:00-10:03	3	passing			
10:03-10:27	24	D	8th grade lunch/ *WIN flex		
10:27-10:51	24	E	8th grade lunch/ *WIN flex		
10:51-10:54	3	passing			
10:54-11:18	24	F	6th grade lunch/ *WIN flex		
11:18-11:42	24	G	6th grade lunch/ *WIN flex		
11:42-11:45	3	passing			
11:45-12:09	24	Н	7th grade lunch/ *WIN flex		
12:09-12:33	24	I	7th grade lunch/ *WIN flex		
12:33-12:36	3	passing			
12:36-1:24	48	J			
1:24-1:27	3	passing			
1:27-2:15	48	К			
2:15 Dismissal					
*W.I.N. = "What I Need" period + assigned days for Advisory & 3TR (<u>Take Time To R</u> ead)					

	2 hr del	ау		3 hr de	lay
Period	Min.	Time	Period	Min.	Time
HR	5	9:25-9:30	HR	5	10:25-10:30
Α	26	9:30-9:56	Α	17	10:30-10:47
	3	9:56-9:59		2	10:47-10:49
В	26	9:59-10:25	D	21	10:49 - 11:10
	3	10:25-10:28	E	21	11:10 - 11:31
D	22	10:28-10:50		2	11:31 - 11:33
E	22	10:50-11:12	F	21	11:33 - 11:54
	3	11:12-11:15	G	21	11:54 - 12:15
F	22	11:15-11:37		2	12:15 - 12:17
G	22	11:37-11:59	н	21	12:17 - 12:38
	3	11:59-12:02	I	21	12:38 - 12:59
н	22	12:02-12:24		2	12:59 - 1:01
I	22	12:24-12:46	*B	17	1:01 - 1:18
	3	12:46-12:49		2	1:18 - 1:20
*C	26	12:49-1:15	*C	17	1:20 - 1:37
	3	1:15-1:18		2	1:37 - 1:39
J	26	1:18-1:44	J	17	1:39 - 1:56
	3	1:44-1:47		2	1:56 - 1:58
К	28	1:47-2:15	К	17	1:58 - 2:15
*Note the position of C-period.			*Note the	position o	f B & C periods.

11:00 early dismissal		12:00 early dismissal			
Period	Min.	Time	Period	Min.	Time
HR	5	7:25-7:30	HR	5	7:25-7:30
Α	15	7:30-745	Α	26	7:30-7:56
	2	7:45-7:47		2	7:56-7:58
В	15	7:47-8:02	В	26	7:58-8:24
	2	8:02-8:04		2	8:24-8:26
С	15	8:04-8:19	С	26	8:26-8:52
	2	8:19-8:21		2	8:52-8:54
*J	15	8:21-8:36	D	21	8:54-9:15
	2	8:36-8:38	E	21	9:15 - 9:36
D	20	8:38-8:58		2	9:36 - 9:38
E	20	8:58-9:18	F	21	9:38 - 9:59
	2	9:18-9:20	G	21	9:59 - 10:20
F	20	9:20-9:40		2	10:20 - 10:22
G	20	9:40-10:00	Н	21	10:22 - 10:43
	2	10:00-10:02	I	21	10:43 - 11:04
н	20	10:02-10:22		2	11:04-11:06
I	20	10:22-10:42	J	26	11:06 - 11:32
	2	10:42-10:44		2	11:32 - 11:34
к	16	10:44-11:00	к	26	11:34 - 12:00
*Note t	he positior	of J-period.			

SCHOOL-WIDE TESTING					
Period	Min.	Time			
HR	5	7:25 - 7:30			
Directions, Procedures & Testing	90	7:30 - 9:00			
	4	9:00 - 9:04			
А	33	9:04 - 9:37			
	2	9:37 - 9:39			
В	33	9:39 - 10:12			
	2	10:12-10:14			
D	22	10:14 -10:36			
E	22	10:36-10:58			
	2	10:58-11:00			
F	22	11:00-11:22			
G	22	11:22-11:44			
	2	11:44-11:46			
Н	22	11:46-12:08			
I	22	12:08-12:30			
	2	12:30-12:32			
*C	33	12:32-1:05			
	2	1:05-1:07			
J	33	1:07-1:40			
	2	1:40-1:42			
K 33 1:42-2:15					
*Note the position of C period.					

DELAYED OPENING OR SCHOOL CLOSING

School closings and delayed openings are announced beginning around 5:30 a.m. and early dismissals are announced around 11:00 a.m. on the following stations: NBC 30-TV (Channel 6), WTNH-TV (Channel 8), and WFSB-TV (Channel 3). Parents are also encouraged to sign up for email notification through <u>www.ctweather.com</u> and select "e-Notifications." There is a link on the school district's website at <u>www.newmilfordps.org</u>.

The district will also notify parents of school closings and early dismissals through the **School Messenger Service**. This service will allow a voicemail message to be sent to all parents within minutes. The ability to deliver a message is only as successful as the contact information that we have for your child. Please make certain that we have the most up-to-date phone numbers.

DISMISSALS

In order to be dismissed from school early, the student must present a note signed by the parent/guardian to the homeroom teacher. This note will include the date, time of dismissal, and the location of the student at time of dismissal (teacher and room #). The student should get homework assignments from teachers or classmates if he/she has been granted an excused dismissal. Parent/guardian directives regarding student pick up, day care, bus change, walkers, etc., must be updated in writing at the beginning of each school year. (Last year's notes will no longer in effect.) Legal documents in students' files are still legal and binding according to context and longevity. If a student becomes ill during the school day, he/she must report to the nurse. She will notify the parent/guardian if dismissal is warranted. Students are not to use their personal phones to call home for parents/guardians to pick them up during the school day. Parent pick-up form can be found on the SMS website under forms.

BOOK BAGS, BACKPACKS, SIDE PACKS

Book bags, side bags, backpacks and mini-bags are to be used as a means for transporting school related items to and from home. These should be of a size that will fit in a student's hall locker. Students will not be allowed to bring any of these from class to class. Within the school day, students are allowed to use string bags only. Minimal items should be kept in the string bag, as students have opportunities to obtain items from their locker.

CAFETERIA

- 1. Neither food nor water is to be taken out of the cafeteria;
- 2. Water machines are available during lunches;
- 3. Students must remain seated in the cafeteria while eating;
- 4. Boisterous or disorderly conduct is not allowed in the cafeteria;
- 5. It is each student's responsibility to keep the cafeteria clean;
- 6. Only eight (8) students at the round tables. All students sitting at a cafeteria table are responsible for the condition/cleanliness of the table and will be reminded of this responsibility. This number may be amended from time-to-time by school administration depending upon circumstances such as public health considerations.

CARE OF PROPERTY

All public property issued to or used by students is to be treated with care. Loss, damage or wear and tear beyond normal use due to misuse, neglect, or carelessness will result in a replacement charge. This applies to books, athletic equipment, laboratory equipment, and locks. School books are to be covered.

CLASSROOM VISITATIONS

A minimum of twenty-four (24) hours advance notice is requested for visitation to a classroom. Arrangements must be made through an administrator via the classroom teacher. For safety reasons and educational reasons, students from other schools are not allowed to visit friends at SMS.

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

FIRE PROCEDURES

Evacuation regulations are explained to their period classes the first day of school. **The regulations are posted** by teachers in all rooms with directions for the individual room circled in red. A floor plan is adjacent to these regulations with direction arrows in RED showing exit route(s).

The chief danger of an evacuation to school pupils is panic. A quiet, calm, and orderly evacuation of a school building is more desirable than a hurried evacuation. Silence is to be maintained during the entire drill.

FIRE DRILLS

- 1. There will be one or more fire drills per month;
- 2. It is expected that students will not talk, run, or misbehave during these times. Misbehavior will be treated as a threat to the safety and well-being of others;
- 3. Upon sounding the alarm or announcement to evacuate, all regular activities are to cease and teachers will immediately give directions to their students;
- 4. Students not in class when the evacuation begins are to report to the nearest teacher for directions;
- 5. Updated evacuation directions are posted near the exit of each room. Building exits are indicated by red exit lights.

LOCKDOWN PROCEDURES

Remember- a "Lockdown Drill" is a *common occurrence*, it is not an active alert. Rather, it is a drill for students, similar to a fire drill, to teach them how to react to an emergency.

- Remain calm.
- No one is to enter or leave the classroom; all students answer to a roll call.
- Shut off all lights in classroom; turn of all computers, TV's, etc.
- Students are to move out of their seats and onto the floor in the safest part of the room away from doors and windows.
- No use of any electronic devices.
- Ignore all bells until further notice.
- Wait for the ALL CLEAR command.
- Students who are outside of the building when a LOCKDOWN is initiated will remain outside until they are informed that is safe to return.

SECURE IN PLACE PROCEDURES

- Doors locked. Curtains down unless otherwise notified.
- Students seated in their desks.
- Window shades drawn.
- No use of any electronic devices.
- Teacher will call down to the office for an escort for the student to leave the room.
- Minimize the noise low voices, no phones, no loud music, etc.
- Teachers should continue with their lesson plans for the day.

Our job is to remain calm and do our best to help students stay calm. Information regarding the reason for the lockdown should be kept to a minimum.

EXTREME WEATHER PROCEDURES

- Office will announce as soon as weather advisory is received;
- Remain calm;
- Move students away from windows and into the nearest hallway;
- Ignore all bells until further notice;
- All students must move to an outside hallway.

DRESS AND GROOMING

We at SMS believe students and adults dressed in accordance with the BOE standards are apt to be more serious about learning.

1. In order to promote a positive learning environment the Board of Education supports these standards for safe and appropriate student dress; nothing in this policy shall be intended to infringe upon students' freedom of expression.

- a. Headwear: All headwear shall be removed prior to entering school and must be placed in the students' locker or where outer garments are stowed for the entire school day;
- b. Blouses/Shirts: Blouses/shirts should be constructed so that the tops of the shoulders are covered. Blouses/shirts will not allow exposure of any portion of the waist, hips, midriff or exposure of the chest;
- c. Shirts/Shorts/Dresses/Pants: Skirts, shorts and dresses should have hemlines that are mid-thigh. With safety as our primary concern, pants should be worn to stay close to the waist; undergarments shall be completely covered;
- d. Outdoor Garments: All outdoor garments will be placed in the students' locker immediately upon entering the school and will remain there for the entire school day;
- e. Shoes: Safe footwear must be worn at all times, avoid flip flops;
- f. Attire: Attire that displays indecent language, pictures or symbols that contain sexual references, or that advertise or encourage the use of drugs, tobacco products, alcoholic beverages are prohibited. Messages of violence or gang allegiance are prohibited. Pajamas, slippers and other lounging attire are not allowed;
- g. Accessories: Students may not wear accessories that could cause injury to others or that are substantially or materially disruptive of the education process.

2. The school administration and faculty are responsible for the implementation of this policy. Exceptions to the above dress standards will be considered for medical reasons, special events, and cultural beliefs or to promote school spirit as determined by the school principal or his/her designee.

3. When the above stated standards have not been met, any or all of the following will occur:

- a. individual counseling;
- b. sending the student home to change and return to school;
- c. parental conferences;
- d. suspension, and possible referral for expulsion, for insubordination (refusal to change and/or follow the directions of the faculty or administration/designee;)

Students will be asked to contact a parent to bring appropriate clothing so the student may attend classes.

ENTERING AND LEAVING THE BUILDING

Students may not enter the building before 7:10 a.m. Students arriving for a before school sponsored activity will be met at the door by their advisor or teacher. Students who, of necessity, arrive before 7:25 a.m. are to report directly to the entrance lobby area and wait until they are dismissed to the cafe at 7:15. To ensure building safety and security, the front doors of the building will remain locked until 7:00 a.m. and then from 7:35 a.m. until the end of the school day.

All visitors must be buzzed into the office and present their license for identification. A badge will be printed for them and this badge must be visible during their stay.

FUNDRAISING

Any school-based organizations, including parent/teacher groups and organizations, wishing to engage in a fund-raising activity must have prior approval from the school principal. Students are not allowed to sell candy, gum, soda, magazines, etc. in the school, on school grounds, or at the bus stop. Please refer to BOE Policies 1324 and 3281 for more information.

LOCKS AND LOCKERS

A locker, in good operating condition, will be issued to each student during the first few days of school.

- Students are not to share lockers or give out their combinations;
- Students will be charged \$5.00 for each lost lock.
- Eighth grade students who have lost their original lock will **NOT** be reimbursed the \$5.00;
- All lockers are to be kept locked;
- Locks not in use will be confiscated;
- Report all malfunctioning lockers to your homeroom teacher;
- All students must use school-issued locks.

The lockers are school property and are on loan to the student. The administration will open locked lockers if it has reason to believe the locker may contain items which are illegal and/or a threat to the safety and wellbeing of the school community, or are otherwise being used for purposes that would constitute a violation of the law or of Board policies. The contents of the locker are the responsibility of the person to whom the locker is issued. Locker clean outs are held periodically throughout the school year.

LOST AND FOUND

Students are advised not to bring expensive watches, jewelry, electronics, and other personal items to school. The items brought to school are a student's personal responsibility. When students do not have them in their personal possession, the items should be locked in their regular or gym locker. A lost and found box will be located with the mailroom and the cafeteria for everything except books which will be sent to the issuing teachers. The school is not responsible for money or articles lost anywhere in the school. Allegations of theft will be handled by the administration.

PARENT MESSAGES TO STUDENTS

Students will not be called out of class for parent messages or forgotten items such as lunches, lunch money, homework, instruments, etc. Students who need to call home for forgotten homework, lunch, lunch money, instruments, etc. may ask the classroom teacher for permission to use the office phone at the conclusion of class. Please do not text your students during the school day. It encourages them to break their promise to follow

the B.Y.O.D policy. At SMS we make every effort not to disturb the integrity of the instructional time. In the spirit of personal responsibility, before the student leaves home in the morning, please remind your child to bring the materials needed for school each day. Students will be notified of parent messages via SMS Wave Runners. These students have a study hall and have volunteered to become Wave Runners for messages during this time period only. They return to their respective next period class when the bell rings.

Parents/guardians who are transporting students home from school must send a note in the morning and sign the student out from the office before leaving. Bus passes for students to ride a different bus will be issued for <u>emergency reasons only</u>, and a note from the parent is required <u>24 hours in advance with a phone number</u> <u>where the parent can be contacted</u>. Parents MUST include the bus number on which the student will be riding and the correct address. Bus passes will be posted in the Message Board window—it is the student's responsibility to take the pass.

PASSES

Students are required to have their handbooks signed any time they are in the corridor after 7:35 a.m. except when passing between classes. Students must report to their normally scheduled class before using a pass to any other place in the building. Students who are out of class or study on a pass to the library or guidance are to return to that class or study before the end of the period. Students who abuse pass privileges may be placed on a RESTRICTED PASS by administration. Students issued a "restricted pass" may not travel the building without specific permission from a teacher. The specific restrictions and the duration will be established by the administration.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Proper footwear and athletic attire are required for students in the physical education classes and sports programs. Students will change out of school clothes and into proper athletic attire. To provide a safe learning environment, each student is required to have proper footwear and all jewelry including earrings be removed. In addition, **no gum or candy** is allowed during physical education class. Due to the physical nature of class, jewelry of any kind is not allowed during class participation.

Locks will be issued for use in the locker rooms. Each student is provided with an individual locker for gymnasium sneakers and clothing as well as a large clothes storage locker for use during physical education classes. Students are to keep lockers locked for protection of personal property during classes. The school cannot be held responsible for items lost or stolen. Students will be charged \$5 for lost gym locks.

Physical Education Excuse Notes

Physical Education is mandated by Connecticut State Law. It is a subject in which the grade is based on in-class participation. When a child cannot participate in a day's activity, he/she is missing valuable class time. A statement from a certified physician is required for exemption from physical education classes. After a reasonable number of written excuses (2) from the nurse or from home, a child is required to make up the class time missed for that marking period. For every class beyond three that is not made up, the student's grade for that marking period will be reduced by five (5) points. Participating in structured after school classes will meet the make-up requirement.

RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS

If a student will be absent from school due to observance of a religious holiday, we ask that the student follow the guidelines listed below.

- Inform teachers of their intended absence at least one week in advance and request make-up work.
- Complete all make-up work in accordance with the schedule set up with the teacher.

SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM

New Milford's Food and Nutrition Services Department provides parents with a convenient, easy, and secure online prepayment service to deposit money into their children's school meal accounts at any time. This service also provides you with the ability to view the account balances through a web site called <u>www.myschoolbucks.com</u>. In addition, you can print out a copy of your children's eating history reports. The history report lists dates and times of all food purchased within the past thirty days.

When parents choose not to take advantage of the online pre-payment service, advance payments via cash or check are made to the cafeteria. Checks are payable to the School Lunch Activity Fund and should include your child's full name and PIN.

If your child qualifies for free or reduced priced meals, this information is noted in the system and the meal is processed just as it is for all other students without any special indication to the student. Applications for free or reduced priced meals will be sent home with students in the fall and are also available in the school office. If you are concerned about your child's food allergy, please notify the cafeteria with this information. If indicated, a warning will appear on the cashier's screen for a review of the items on your child's tray.

When purchasing a meal, students enter their person's six-digit personal identification number (PIN). A practice keypad can be found on the district homepage. Please feel free to contact the Food Services office at 860-354-3712 if you have any questions.

The school lunch policy for using the computerized cash register system is outlined below.

- 1. Students may put money in their account anytime except when lunch is being served;
- 2. If students wish to purchase a la carte items with money in their account, they should see the hot lunch cashier in the morning before lunch is being served; Parents may place restrictions on accounts to limit the purchase of a la carte items.
- 3. Students should not enter the food serving area if they are not purchasing food items;
- 4. Monies placed in a student's lunch account may only be used to purchase food items;
- 5. Make checks payable to <u>School Lunch Activity Fund</u>, or you can charge your student's lunch with your credit card on the school website, http://sms.newmilfordps.org/, click on Food and Nutrition Services, then click on Payment Information and then click on http://www.myschoolbucks.com. Lunch menus are posted in the school cafeteria and also on our website.

At SMS, students are responsible for keeping the cafe clean.

STUDENT USE OF OFFICE PHONE

The office phone is for emergencies only. Students must sign the book at the office counter, ask permission, and give the reason for their call before using the main office phone. **Students are not to use their personal phones to call home for parent pick up during the school day**. Phones are to be kept in students' lockers. Per the BOE BYOD policy: *students will only be allowed to use their laptops, tablets, cell phones or other electronic devices* for <u>educational</u> purposes at school. Checking personal email, socializing via texts or instant messages, or otherwise engaging in personal pursuits is prohibited during the instructional day.

TEAMING

Schaghticoke Middle School divides its student body into smaller groups called "teams" (Red, White, & Blue). An important characteristic of teaming is frequent team meetings. While students are in specials, the team teachers are meeting together. Teachers discuss their students at these meetings, and by doing so can often prevent any small problem from becoming a big one. This time is also used by teachers to plan their classroom programs or special team units and to hold parent conferences when necessary.
TEXTBOOK CARE & OBLIGATIONS

Each student is responsible for maintaining and returning each textbook issued to him/her. To increase the life of the book, books should be covered. The teachers will stress the covering of textbooks. Damage to or loss of books is the student's financial responsibility. Certain student privileges may be withheld from students who fail to satisfy outstanding obligations. Withdrawal from school/transfer cannot be processed until all textbooks are returned.

VIDEO RECORDING

There are two types of video security in the school district: on buses and in the public areas of the school building. This video recording is for the purposes of safety and security. The archives are erased approximately every thirty (30) days, unless a clip needs to be kept as evidence in an active case. Due to privacy laws, videos will not be shared with students or parents/guardians.

VOLUNTEERS

Volunteers are a valuable asset to the school community. Please read the following page regarding procedures and volunteer opportunities.

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS Department of Human Resources 50 East Street New Milford, Connecticut 06776 (860) 210-2200 FAX (860) 210-2643



Director of Human Resources

Dear School Volunteer,

The Board of Education recognizes that volunteers can make many valuable contributions to our schools. The Board endorses a volunteer program that encourages community residents to take an active role to become school volunteers subject to suitable regulations and safeguards.

The New Milford Public Schools recognizes that just about any volunteer situation may result in direct contact with students. Our obligation to take appropriate measures to keep our children safe is one of our primary concerns. We require criminal history checks, at no cost to you, of all adults who wish to act as volunteers in our schools or chaperones on our field trips.

In order to volunteer, whether in the classroom, school, or on a field trip, it is necessary for you to be fingerprinted. However, if you have already been fingerprinted and have actively volunteered each year, you may not need to be re-fingerprinted. You should check with the secretary to the principal in your child's school.

Fingerprinting dates will be set over the summer and posted on the district website, as well as, be made available through the school office once school begins. When your child returns to school next year, you will need to sign up with your child's teacher **before** you can be fingerprinted.

If you are planning to volunteer at any time during the school year, please sign up with your child's teacher and plan to be fingerprinted earlier, rather than later. More information will be given to you from the school.

We look forward to having you join us as a school volunteer.

Reference: School Volunteers (Board of Education Policy 1212)

GRADING PROCEDURES

ACADEMIC AWARDS RECIPIENT REQUIREMENTS FOR GRADES 6, 7, and 8

Sixth, seventh, and eighth graders must achieve highest honor roll status for the first three marking periods of the school year. (Above 90% in all major subjects and no grade below 70 in minor subjects.)

These students will be recognized at our spring award's celebration.

PRESIDENT'S AWARD FOR EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE

The purpose of this award is to recognize academic success in the classroom. In order to be considered for this award, a student in **grade 8** must first receive an academic average of 90% or higher for each of the four quarters of 7^{th} grade and each of the first two quarters of eighth grade. To be eligible for the President's Award for Education Excellence, students must meet these requirements:

- Students are to earn a grade point average of 90 on a 100 point scale for each quarter. When computing grade point averages at the respective award level, only the years at that level are to be included through the fall semester of the exiting grade;
- Each school establishes standards for the award that reflect a 90 percent level or higher on the traditional grading scale. The primary indicators of excellence must be based on academic achievement. School personnel may also consider, as part of the criteria, activities in which a student demonstrates high motivation, initiative, integrity, intellectual depth, leadership qualities and/or exceptional judgement. They may also require student essays and outstanding attendance, but these activities must bear some relationship to the academic performance of a student;
- Teacher recommendations. This judgement is to be supported by tangible evidence that consists of either results on teacher-made tests, portfolio assessment, or special projects.

ACADEMIC ASSISTANCE

Success in academics is very important and we at Schaghticoke are committed to helping each student achieve his/her best. If necessary, the student will be requested to attend the Academic Fitness Club that meets after school from 2:20 until 3:30 p.m.

CHEATING

Cheating violates the philosophy and goals of Schaghticoke Middle School. It also can serve as a basis for suspension or expulsion under Board Policy 5114. The following are some examples of cheating:

- Copying answers from others;
- Dishonestly obtaining answers or other information during tests and quizzes;
- Dishonestly receiving information about tests or quizzes before they are given;
- Stealing tests or quizzes;
- Submitting another's work or ideas as your own (plagiarism);
- Turning in the same work for more than one class without permission;
- Obtaining essays, reports, or term papers from the Internet and turning them in as your own work;
- Using either human or electronic translation to translate assignments in World Language class;
- Giving another student your work to copy and submit as his/her own;
- Accepting money to do the work for another student;
- Taking pictures of tests or other student assessments;
- Texting test information or answers to others;

HONOR ROLL FOR GRADES 6, 7, & 8

Highest Honors	All grades 90 or better in all major subjects and no grade below 70 in minor subjects.
High Honors	An overall average of 90 or better in all major subjects and no grade below 70 in minor subjects.
Honors	An overall average of 85 or better in all major subjects and no grade below 70 in minor subjects.

Major subjects are Language Arts, Social Studies, Science, Mathematics and World Language. All other subjects are considered minor subjects.

It is the student's responsibility to contact the teacher and make up any incomplete grade within 10 days after the marking period has ended unless the administration or the teacher has granted a longer make-up period. The computerized grade will become a zero if not made up within the allotted time. Teachers will not accept any late papers, etc. after the date grades close. Unusual circumstances may be considered an exception to this rule on a case-by-case basis.

DEPARTMENT TESTING PROCEDURES

Each department is managed by a head teacher. In order to ensure continuity of assessments, departments have created testing to be used by all teachers. At SMS, our policy is to retain copies of student tests for review and remediation during the school year, in addition to storing in a portfolio. Any parent who wishes to examine a student's test can make an appointment with the teacher to do so or ask the teacher to make a copy to be sent home.

MID-YEAR AND FINAL EXAMINATIONS

Mid-year and final exams <u>may be given</u> in grades 7 and 8 at the discretion of the subject area teacher. This exam may be in the form of a test, project, or some other performance assessment. Grade 6 does not hold formal mid-year and final examinations.

PARENT PORTAL

The New Milford Public School District is continuing its efforts to communicate with parents and guardians of students. Powerschool, our student information system, allows secure access to parents through the Parent Portal. Parent Portal will allow parents and guardians to create a single parent account that will give access to all their children in the district. This web-based system will allow you to stay informed of your child's grades and attendance via the Internet. Find out what is going on at your child's school anytime, anywhere! With the parent portal, you can see your child's class assignments, email teachers, view grades, and access school bulletins.

Since our school district has transitioned over to a new Student Information System, more information will be shared regarding access to the new Portal.

PARENT-TEACHER CONFERENCES

Parents are encouraged to communicate either by phone, email, with their child's team teachers, or team leaders to share concerns. Parents may schedule conferences with the academic team and/or counselor. Formal fall and spring conferences are set up each year. Please refer to the district calendar for specific dates. If a delay or a cancellation of school occurs on a conference day, your conference will be rescheduled.

Both fall and spring conferences are scheduled with individual teachers. Spring conferences will focus on the subject areas in which the student is having difficulty. Parents may conference with individual teachers. Please consult the district calendar found on the NMPS website.

REPORT CARD SCHEDULES

*See school calendar for marking period closing date.

PROGRAM OF STUDIES

GRADE 6 REQUIREMENTS

English Language Arts (ELA)-Reading and Writing Mathematics Social Studies Science Art Music (Band, Chorus, Orchestra) Physical Education (PE) Health Technology Developmental Guidance- push in lessons by school counselors

GRADE 7 REQUIREMENTS

English Language Arts (ELA) Mathematics Social Studies Science Reading Comprehension or World Language (French or Spanish) Art Music (Band, Chorus, Orchestra or General Music) Practical Arts & Project Lead the Way (PLTW) Physical Education (PE) Health Technology Developmental Guidance- push in lessons by school counselors

GRADE 8 REQUIREMENTS

English Language Arts (ELA) Mathematics Social Studies Science Reading Comprehension or World Language (French or Spanish) Art Music (Band, Chorus, or Orchestra) Practical Arts & Project Lead the Way (PLTW) Physical Education Health Technology Developmental Guidance- push in lessons by school counselors

MUSICAL OPPORTUNITIES

Chorus - 2 days per 6-day cycle and one sectional/full year. Or, sometimes 1 day in a 5-day rotation. Band - 2 days per 6-day cycle and one sectional/full year Orchestra - 2 days per 6-day cycle and one sectional/full year Jazz Band - before school * Voices - before or after school * *By audition

ADVANCED MATHEMATICS

RECOMMENDATIONS for GRADE 6 PRE-ALGEBRA

<u>Criteria for 6^{th} grade Pre-Algebra:</u> In order to ensure that students are capable of handling the demands of this course, the following is a list of criteria:

- 1. NWEA historical average/trend line percentile of 93rd- 95th or above for two consecutive administrations;
- 2. An average of 95% overall in Grade 5 Math (This could be an M on the Algebra Content Standards on the report card.);
- 3. Solid work habits; works independently, shows all work, good attendance;
- 4. Students whose assessments demonstrate an overall ability for algebra readiness (student performance with relation to the algebra readiness standards taught in grade 5 math);
- 5. Teacher consultation including analysis of summative data;
- 6. Consistently exceeding grade level standards.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR GRADE 7

<u>Criteria for Algebra</u>: In order to ensure that students are capable of handling the demands of the grade 7 Algebra course, the following is a list of criteria:

- 1. NWEA historical average/trend line percentile of 80th 85th or above;
- 2. 95% average or higher in Grade 6 Math;
- 3. Solid work habits; works independently, shows all work, good attendance;
- 4. Teacher consultation; including analysis of summative data and performance tasks;
- 5. Consistently exceeding grade level standards.

<u>Criteria for Pre-Algebra</u>: In order to ensure that students are capable of handling the demands of the Grade 7 Pre-Algebra course, the following is a list of criteria:

- 1. NWEA historical average/trend line percentile of 65th 70th or above;
- 2. 95% average or higher in Grade 6 Math;
- 3. Solid work habits; works independently, shows all work, good attendance;
- 4. Teacher consultation; including analysis of summative data and performance tasks;
- 5. Consistently meeting and/or exceeding grade level standards.

SUMMER ALGEBRA READINESS PROGRAM

For 7th grade students who took a Math 7 course and exhibited tremendous growth, we offer a summer experience to bypass the traditional Pre-Algebra course and go straight to Algebra in Grade 8. Upon review of multiple data points, we look at students who have shown significant growth. Criteria for consideration for this summer experience are as follows:

- 1. NWEA Math average/trend line percentile of 65th or above;
- 2. 93% average or higher in Grade 7 Math;
- 3. Solid work habits; works independently, shows all work, good attendance;
- 4. Teacher consultation; including analysis of summative data and performance tasks;
- 5. Consistently meeting and/or exceeding grade level standards.

We offer this course to expose students to the critical units of the Pre-Algebra curriculum in order to ensure readiness for potential entrance to Algebra in 8th grade. At the end of this course, the students must demonstrate 80% mastery of the concepts on an Algebra Readiness assessment in order to be placed in Algebra 8 for the next school year.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR GRADE 8

<u>Criteria for Algebra</u>: In order to ensure students are capable of handling the demands of the Grade 8 Algebra course, the following is a list of criteria:

- 1. Successfully completed pre-algebra course with an 90% average or higher;
- 2. Solid work habits; works independently, shows all work, good attendance;
- 3. Teacher consultation; including analysis of summative data;
- 4. Consistently meeting and/or exceeding grade level standards.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR GRADE 9

Eighth graders who hope to be recommended for placement into honors level courses at New Milford High School need to work very hard from the beginning of eighth grade. The following are the various levels of courses offered at New Milford High School:

Level College Prep	Focus Academic courses present an in depth study of subject matter and content. Students in this level are expected to demonstrate strong basic skills in the individual subject matter. Academic courses meet the academic requirements for applying to college.
Honors	Honors courses are for students who display extremely strong academic skills, high motivation, and an ability to work with abstract concepts independently. Honors courses prepare students for highly selective colleges.

The placement of students into a particular level of a course depends on many factors. The following procedures are used by SMS teachers when recommending students for ninth grade classes:

- 1. The teacher of the student recommends placement into a particular level of achievement. Requirements for research and homework vary according to the level of instruction after considering:
 - a. the student's achievement;
 - b. standardized test results;
 - c. record of having completed homework in a timely and thorough manner;
- 2. The student's school counselor then assists with teacher recommendations. The entire scheduling process is a cooperative effort between parent, student, teacher, and counselor. Parents/guardians are encouraged to work closely with the student, the teachers, and the counselor to ensure placement in the most appropriate level of instruction.

SERVICES AND FACILITIES

ALLERGIES

If your child has allergies to any substance, please alert the nurse.

HEALTH SERVICES

The school nurses are on duty from 7:25 a.m. to 2:25 p.m. Any student who becomes ill in school, or is injured on school grounds, or in a school bus should report to the teacher in charge and request permission to see the nurse. The nurse will handle first aid for accidents; further treatment is the responsibility of the parent or guardian.

Non-emergency visits to the nurse will be in accordance with the posted clinic hours. BEFORE reporting to the nurse, a student must obtain a pass from his/her teacher. The nurse will call the parent if the student needs to be dismissed for illness. Students should NOT contact a parent directly to be dismissed for medical reasons. Dismissals must go through the nurse's office.

IMMUNIZATIONS

<u>Grade 5-6</u> immunization requirements:

- DTaP/Td/Tdap—at least 4 doses. The last dose must be given on or after 4th birthday. Students who start the series at age 7 or older only need a total of 3 doses.
- Polio—at least 3 doses. The last dose must be given on or after 4th birthday.
- MMR—2 doses separated by at least 28 days, 1 dose on or after the 1st birthday.
- HepB—3 doses, last dose on or after 24 weeks of age.
- Varicella—1st dose on or after the 1st birthday; or verification of disease the 1st birthday.
- HepB—3 doses, last dose on or after 24 weeks of age.
- Varicella—1st dose on or after the 1st birthday; or verification of disease.

Grade 7 immunization requirements:

- Tdap/Td—1 dose for students who have completed their primary DTaP series. Students who start the series at age 7 or older only need a total of 3 doses of tetanus-diphtheria containing vaccine, one of which must be Tdap
- Polio—At least 3 doses. The last dose must be given on or after 4th birthday
- MMR—2 doses separated by at least 28 days, 1st dose on or after the 1st birthday
- Meningococcal—1 dose
- HepB—3 doses, last dose on or after 24 weeks of age
- Varicella—2 doses separated by at least 3 months—1st dose on or after the 1st birthday; or verification of disease.

MEDICATIONS

Connecticut law requires a physician's written order and parent/guardian's written authorization for a nurse to administer medicinal preparations in school.

Medications should not be given during school hours; if it is at all possible, arrange to give all doses at home. If a student requires the administration of medication during school hours, the New Milford Board of Education Policy on administration of medication is by school nurse and teachers during school hours is as follows:

- 1. The school must receive the written consent of the parent/guardian to administer the medication and a written order of the prescribing doctor;
- 2. The bottle must be labeled with the name of the student, name of the doctor, name of the medication, the date it is ordered, and the directions;
- 3. The medication must be brought to school by a parent or responsible adult and taken home by a parent or responsible adult. The nurse will dispose of any remaining medication NOT brought home, after one week.

The proper consent and order forms are available in the nurse's office or a physician's office. If parents/guardians take their child(ren) to their doctor, take the doctor's form and have it filled out. Cooperation in this program will be a great help in ensuring that children receive the medical assistance they need during the school hours.

Neither the New Milford Board of Education nor any of its personnel, including but not limited to school nurses, is responsible for ensuring that the medication, or its recommended dosage, prescribed by a physician or other medical professional and/or provided by the parents or guardians, is appropriate for the student.

Bloodborne Pathogens

Good health practices are teaching us that in our current society it is unwise to touch body fluids such as blood, mucous, saliva, etc. Should contact occur, immediately consult a staff member or the nurse for reference to the school exposure control plan.

COVID-19

Given the nature of the COVID-19 pandemic and the uncertainty as to its prevalence or effect in the coming school year, 2021-22, and in accordance with possible directives or guidance issued by an agency of the United States government, the Center for Disease Control and Prevention, the State of Connecticut, and/or the New Milford Department of Health – the New Milford Board of Education may be issuing supplemental information regarding measures and expectations pertaining to student and staff health.

INSURANCE

Accident insurance is available for purchase by each student. Parents/guardians are encouraged to enroll their child in this program if they do not have medical or accident insurance, since most accidents during the school day are not covered by Board of Education school insurance.

LIBRARY MEDIA CENTER

The library media center is open from 7:45 a.m. to 2:55 p.m. for student use. A student must have a pass to be admitted to the library media center. In order to provide a quiet atmosphere for study, unnecessary talking is discouraged. Students who show a lack of self-control will lose their center privileges.

Passes given for a student to complete a class assignment are to be given by the classroom teacher assigning the work. The pass will entitle the student to remain in the library media center for the entire period.

SCHOOL COUNSELING SERVICES

The school and counseling services are structured to assist students in understanding themselves and to help them make the best use of the school's educational resources. Counselors are **not** licensed to offer therapeutic counseling. The school counselors are available to students through referrals made by the student, parent, teacher, or administration.

There is a school counselor for each team at the middle school. Parents/guardians may schedule a conference with their child's school counselor during or after the school day.

STUDENT ACTIVITIES

Schaghticoke Middle School offers a range of extra-curricular activities covering varied interests. It is desirable that every student partake in at least one club, activity, intramural, participate in a sport, or participate in the band or chorus. A list of activities offered at SMS will be available on our website. SMS has a Student Council and a Leo Club for 6^{th} , 7^{th} , and 8^{th} grade.

CLUBS / SPORTS

Many clubs, intramurals, and interscholastic sports are organized after the opening of school. These activities reflect student interest. Students must be present in school to participate in an after school club or sport. See our school website for a complete list of all activities/sports offered and the dates and times these meet. Those absent, dismissed early, suspended, or expelled may not attend that day.

EVENING EVENTS

Students <u>MUST be accompanied by an adult</u> when attending **any** evening event at Schaghticoke Middle School including plays and concerts. Students not with a parent will be asked to wait in the office until a parent arrives to pick him/her up or to accompany the student to the event.

FIELD TRIPS

Field trips held during school time compliment the school's curriculum. They are available to all students except those who pose a safety risk to themselves and/or others or whose behavior is not in concert with SMS behavior expectations. As with all other school activities, students who are suspended in school, or out-of-school, or who have been expelled, will not be permitted to attend the field trip. The students in danger of not attending a proposed field trip and their parents will be notified. Only those students who have qualified for free or reduced lunches may also apply for field trip financial assistance.

EIGHTH GRADE END OF YEAR EVENTS

To ensure all students are successful and able to participate in all of the end-of-the-year activities, including promotion ceremony, a set of academic and behavioral criteria must be met in order for students to attend the 8th grade field trip, dance, ice cream social, and promotion ceremony. Criteria will be shared and parents will be notified by administration if their student may not participate. Any 8th grader who fails more than one core academic course for the school year may not be permitted to participate in the 8th grade promotion ceremony.

EIGHTH GRADE DINNER DANCE

- 1. The 8th Grade Dinner Dance may be attended only by students enrolled at SMS;
- 2. The 8th Grade Dinner Dance is intended to be a dressy occasion in celebration of the ending of the middle school years for our students. Limousines, tuxedos, and expensive prom gowns and strapless dresses are not appropriate for middle school students. Shorts, jeans or sneakers are not acceptable wear. Since students are so peer conscious, we do not wish them to feel pressured into "matching" the extravagances of one another. Students have just as much fun in jackets and ties or party dresses that would be appropriate for a special family occasion or dinner;
- 3. The dinner dance will begin at **6:30 p.m. and end at 8:30 p.m.** Students will remain at the dance until its conclusion at 8:30 p.m. Parents are expected to be at SMS for pick up promptly at 8:30 p.m. as well. Students will be permitted to leave early only if a parent signs them out;
- 4. The dance will be held in the cafeteria, unless otherwise approved by the principal. Students should arrive no sooner than 10 minutes before the scheduled start of the dance and will remain in the designated area during the dance, except to use the lavatories;
- 5. As with all other school activities, students who are suspended in school, or out-of-school, or are absent on the day of a dance may not attend the activity. Students must remain in school until 12:30 to be eligible to attend the dinner and have a signed early dismissal note from a parent;
- 6. Students are expected to behave with courtesy and respect towards others present at the dance, and to follow the directions of the chaperones;
- 7. No packages of any kind will be allowed into the dance without first being subject to inspection by the chaperones;
- 8. Students must bring in a signed note from their parent giving permission for another parent to pick them up

after the dinner dance.

9. No students will be allowed to purchase a ticket for entrance at the door. Pre-paid ticket with permission slip must be submitted in advance by the established due date.

SUPPORT SERVICES

SMS is serviced by school psychologists and social workers. These staff members are responsible for psychoeducational evaluations, consulting with staff and parents concerning a student's academic and emotional needs, counseling students, and facilitating the implementation of the student's educational program. They will also help parents procure the necessary outside resources they may need.

ACADEMIC HELP AFTER SCHOOL

The purpose of academic help is to provide individual attention for those students who are experiencing academic difficulty. Teachers or pupils may make requests for extra help after school. Dates and time for the Academic Fitness Club will be posted on our website.

Written Parent Permission for students to remain after school is required. This includes extra help sessions, re-teachings, and other activities supervised by a teacher. <u>Permission must be in written form</u>. Signed faxes will be accepted. Written permission must be given for a student to walk home from school and from after school activities.

CHILD'S HEALTH AND SAFETY

In the event a student becomes seriously ill or suffers an injury while riding the bus and the bus is not disabled or in a reportable accident, we will follow this procedure:

- If the bus is more than halfway to the student's home, the driver will radio the bus dispatcher. The dispatcher will call the student's home to notify the family of the illness or injury and the student will be brought home as soon as possible;
- If the bus is less than halfway home and the school offices are still open, the dispatcher will notify the school and the authorities. Every effort will be made to **contact** the home and parents. If the driver deems it necessary to transport a student directly to medical care, the dispatcher will notify school authorities who will in turn contact the home.

HOMEWORK – GENERAL GUIDELINES

Homework assists with the development of a responsible, independent learner. For 6th grade, the type of homework and the length of the assignment will be reflective of the child's age and attention span. As students' progress to eighth grade, the amount and type of work will vary. Most students in grade 7 can expect regular daily assignments that may take up to 80 minutes to complete. The homework time for students in grade 8 may increase to 90 minutes per night. Some students may spend more time than others on given assignments. If a student spends more than 30 minutes on any assignment, the parent should notify the teacher of this concern.

Study Halls:

STUDY HALLS, WIN, ADVISORY, 3TR

- 1. Students will study quietly unless given permission by the teacher to study with another student;
- 2. Students may leave study hall classes only with permission of the teacher who will give them a signed pass and have them sign out on a sign-out sheet;
- 3. Students will bring all necessary study materials to the study hall class.

W.I.N. / Advisory / 3TR (<u>Take Time To R</u>ead)

During each student's flex period (opposite lunch), all students will participate in various learning experiences. This period of time, called WIN (What I Need), is designed to provide an opportunity for students to access their teachers for extra help, enrichment, or other experience. Periodically throughout the year, students will be engaged in

advisory activities linked to Social Emotional Learning. At times, the school/students will be notified to hold our Take Time to Read (3TR) initiative during this time. The purpose and goal of 3TR is to stress and encourage reading. During this 24 minute period, students will read material of their choosing or a material encouraged by their teacher. Both Advisory and 3TR are also part of the NMHS schedule.

TRANSPORTATION

Bus transportation is provided, when feasible, to all students who reside beyond reasonable walking distance of the high school **in accordance with Board Policy 3541**. Students riding school buses are bound by the same behavioral expectations in force during the school day. Violations of proper behavior on school buses may result in loss of bus privileges **as well as further disciplinary consequences including suspension and expulsion**. Smoking, threatening, fighting, disruptions, and use of offensive language are among behaviors that will not be tolerated on the buses. Furthermore, any student who inflicts damage upon a bus will be held financially responsible for the cost of that damage.

Students who leave school grounds during the day without authorization are not permitted back on campus to ride a bus home.

School buses are equipped with video cameras; students should be aware of the possibility of videotaping.

SCHOOL BUS TRANSPORTATION CODE OF DISCIPLINE

The following sanctions apply to misbehavior on or around school buses during regular daily bus runs, as well as on field trips and co-curricular bus trips, unless otherwise noted. Disciplinary actions are defined at three levels given below:

<u>Level I</u>

- eating food, chewing gum, or drinking beverages
- littering the bus
- refusing to use an assigned seat
- refusing to follow reasonable directions of the driver
- use of profane or obscene language
- leaving one's seat while bus is moving
- · placing hands, feet, or head out the window
- pushing or shoving others
- disrespect of bus driver

After an initial warning, the administrator will suspend the student from riding privileges for three (3) days, ten (10) days, and thirty (30) days on subsequent infractions. Should such behavior persist or escalate, the student may be subject to further disciplinary consequences, including suspension and expulsion.

Level II

- Fighting/assault/battery
- Entering/exiting through rear door
- Interfering with driver controls
- Smoking
- Throwing articles
- Vandalism

First offense will receive ten (10) days suspension from riding. Subsequent offenses will be thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days. In all cases involving vandalism, the student and/or parent/guardian will be assessed for all costs. Should this behavior result in, or pose a risk of injury, either to the student or to another individual, the student will be subject to further disciplinary consequences, including suspension and expulsion.

<u>Level III</u>

- Using/possessing a dangerous weapon
- Carrying flammable materials

Student will be suspended and reported to the Superintendent for possible expulsion for up to one year.

TRANSPORTATION PROCEDURES

Students are not to leave the building before dismissal time unless permission is granted by the office to leave early. Unless prior permission is obtained from the office, a student may leave the building only in a school bus or his/her parent's car. Students not taking a bus are to remain in their last period classes until 2:15 unless prior permission has been granted to leave before that time. Parents/guardians who are transporting students home from school must send a note in the morning and sign the student out from the office before leaving. Bus passes for students to ride a different bus will be issued for <u>emergency reasons only</u>, and a note from the parent is required <u>24 hours in advance with a phone number where the parent can be contacted</u>. A Bus Pass/Dismissal note can be found on our website under forms. Buses are crowded, and we cannot make exceptions. Even emergency requests cannot be guaranteed. Requests for riding a different bus to visit a friend or to work on a school project are not considered emergencies. These notes should be brought to the office, or can be submitted directly from the SMS website.

The New Milford Board of Education is concerned with the safety of students in school and on the bus. The lives of many children are in the hands of the drivers on a daily basis. Following the rules listed above is essential for each child's safety. Violation of the rules is considered a serious offense since it distracts the driver and interferes with the safe operation of the bus. Such offenses will be dealt with in accordance with the Board of Education's policy on bus discipline that may include suspension of the privilege of bus transportation. We ask that you review the rules below with your child as follow-up to instructions that will be provided by teachers and bus drivers. The Board of Education wishes to thank the parents for their cooperation. Students are to be aware that a video security system may be in use on all buses. This will function as an electronic rear-view mirror and we hope that it will help to prevent inappropriate student behaviors.

TRANSPORTATION ISSUES

Please be advised of the following procedures for making requests or filing complaints concerning school transportation.

- I. Immediate Safety Concerns, Clarification of Existing Routes/Schedules and Complaints Regarding Existing Transportation Services:
 - These requests should be made via telephone to All-Star Transportation Dispatch Office at: 860-350-2880.
- II. Requests for extensions and alterations of service during the school year:
 - These requests can be made in writing to the New Milford Public Schools, Director of Fiscal Services, 50 East Street, New Milford CT 06776.
 - Upon receipt of your request, you will be contacted within ten (10) business days regarding the disposition of the matter. Typically, these requests are not of an immediate or time-sensitive matter.
 - During the summer, these requests will be handled within ten (10) days prior to the opening of school.
- III. Student Discipline Issues:
 - All student discipline issues should be addressed with the school's administrators.

YOUTH AGENCY AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM AT SMS

Throughout the school year, the New Milford Youth Agency will be offering three after school programs for students at Schaghticoke Middle School. Offering these activities will depend on COVID rates.

- <u>Student Enrichment Program</u>: Students can register for various activities such as culinary classes, adventure based events and community service opportunities. Schedules TBD on a bi-monthly basis.
- <u>Student Full-Time After School Program:</u> Students can register for the Youth Agency's After School Program Monday-Friday from dismissal until 6:30pm. Students in this program will engage in games,

activities, sports and receive homework help. Hours of operation also include selected holidays, snow days, early dismissals and school recesses.

• <u>Students With Transportation Issues</u>: Students who register with the Youth Agency that participate in clubs, intramurals and interscholastic sports can re-join the Youth Agency at the conclusion of their activity.

The New Milford Youth Agency looks forward to continuing a positive relationship with the community at Schaghticoke Middle School. For more information, call 860-210-2030 or visit online at <u>www.youthagency.org</u>.